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Chairman’s Statement
Dear Shareholders,

This being my last statement as an executive of INTERNETQ PLC (“INTERNETQ"), | am proud to report that fiscal 2012 was a
year of exceptionally strong financial performance which has been achieved by continued expansion as well as technical
innovation For the third year in a row, we achieved record revenue, EBITDA and earnings per share In particular, net
income for our shareholders was a record €6 million, an increase of 148% over last year, and revenue topped € 73 4 million,
up 47% from last year Diluted earnings per share increased 125% to € 0 18, while adjusted for share-based acquisition
costs and share-based employee compensation {as part of our long term talent retention program) EPS stood at a record €
Q 23, as opposed to €0 12 the year before

Our success was driven hy improved results in each of our businesses and reflects the strength of our entire portfolio Most
importantly, it reflects the strength of our mission, people, technology and value system It's also the result of our long-
term strategy and the significant technology investments we’ve made over the last several years to ensure that we
continue to find new ways to monetize global mobile commerce

Over the last three years, we have bullt an extended network of carrier connectivities, content partners and marketing
partners that provide enormous opportunities for us to continue creating high-quality experiences for mobile audiences in
a growing number of emerging markets More specifically, since our IPO we have focused on three key strategic priorities
that have been critical to our success a) expand of our network operations beyond Eastern Europe and into new high
growth markets, b) improve our technological solutions to offer advanced mobile marketing services on smartphones, as
well as the tracitional SMS based campaigns and ¢} develop our AKAZQOO offering into a fully-fledged mobile music service
able to compete on a globa! scale | am proud to say that fiscal 2012 has been another year of great achievement for our
businesses in all of these key areas

In 2012 we underwent ¢ritical management changes to ensure that the business can continue growing successfully in the
longer term In Apnl 2012 we recruited Bob Beveridge, a highly valued non-executive that has brought better balance to
the board’s function and more strength to its governance Moving on, in November 2012, | stepped aside from the position
of Chief Executive and assumed the role of Chairman, paving the way for Panagiotis Dimitropoulos to assume his natural
leadership role in the company he founded At the same time, we re-structured our organization going forward, to align our
cost base with the future needs of the company and re-allocating resources to better meet the growth potential across our
entire portfolio

By all accounts and any measure, 2012 was an extraordinary year for INTERNETQ Our achievements are a testament to the
commitment and tireless work of our incredibly talented employees around the world Our results reflected the sound
execution of our business plans, centered on global expansion and disciplined cost and asset management Among our
achievements, we delivered our highest-ever sales and tnhcome, made substantial investments to expand our worldwide
footprint, and continued an aggressive launch of advanced new products like the new version of AKAZOO and MimiMob, a
promising new platform that delivers ongoing mobile marketing messages via push notification on the operating systems of
smartphones

Despite persistent global economic concerns, longer-term trends based on population growth and nising living standards
remain strong It 1s widely believed that smartphone penetration will continue expanding at double-digit rates over the next
several years and that a growing number of products and services will be marketed over the mobile network Hence the
need for high-quality, innovative mobile marketing capabilities like the ones we are continually developing To illustrate the
potential force of these tailwinds, consider that while economic growth for much of the world has stalled in the last several
years, the overall “mobility” has fared remarkably well Mobile network subscriptions keep nsing, device proliferation 1s
picking up pace and broadband 1s expanding and becoming more affordable
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As a result, InternetQ remains well positioned to enjoy growing profits even 1n an uncertain global economy and, longer
term, to benefit from broad trends and favorable industry tallwinds that we believe hold great promise for our future

On behalf of everyone at InternetQ, | thank you for your continued support and confidence You can count on the team to
do its best to continue achieving fantastic results and deliver exceptional shareholder value in the future

Konstantinos Korletis,
Executive Chairman
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Chief Executive Officer’s Review

Introduction
| am delighted to report another strong operational performance from INTERNETQ over the last 12 months 2012
represents a year of renewed operational progress in which we remain focused on three core growth drivers
¢ The delivery of strong organic growth across all business units,
* Increase operational presence in Asia and Africa, further capitalizing on InternetQ’s established market presence,
e Actively pursue selective bolt-on acquisitions that accelerate our technology capabilities or enhanced our geographic
footprint

8y focusing on these core objectives, the Group has been able to deliver such impressive results for shareholders

As CEO, my mussion has been to focus on operational excellence, ensuring the business delivers sustainable revenue growth
over the longer term OQur strategic progress i1s underpinned by our internal systems, coupled with an entrepreneurial spirt
that you would associate with a fasted paced technology company

Whilst we continue to invest in our motile marketing operations, which remains a core component of INTERNETQ, our
team 1s making substantial progress with our entertainment platform, AKAZOO Both business units are geared towards
the faster growing emerging economies, where we continue to see good growth going forward Our focus on Emerging
Asia 1s ever present, which 1s supported by IMF research which forecasts the region to deliver 7 7% GDP growth in 2013

Turning to our financial performance, we are delighted to report a significant increase of revenues in the peniod supported
by an ever improving prefit margin  Our collective aim 1s to continue this positive trend going forward which we helieve
can be achieved by a combination of strategic sales initiatives and product development and imnovation

Turning to the numbers, revenues increased 47% in 2012 to €73 4 million (2011 €50 1 million), with all business segments
delivering a substantial sales growth Revenues from core Mobile Marketing activities grew by 40% to €57 5 million (2011
€41 2 million) while revenues from AKAZOO grew by 90% to €11 4 million (2011 €6 million)

The geographic diversity of our business was improved by strong growth in Asia which now comprises 36% (2011 17%) of
Group revenues, and Africa, now 15% of revenues (2011 14%) Europe now represents 40% of sales, down from 61% in
2011

The focus on delivering an improved profit level has resulted in pre-tax profit and adjusted pre-tax profit increasing 112%
and 106% respectively, with our EBITDA margin and adjusted EBITDA margin of 14 4% and 16 7% respectively {adjusted
figure relate to share incentive plans and acquisition costs amounting to €1 7 million — Note 9), our best performance to
date

In summary, our business momentum remains very strong and the Group 1s well placed to continue to generate sustamnable
proht growth for our shareholders

Diwisional overview

Our business operates three distinct but interconnecting spheres— mobile marketing, premium digital entertainment and
smartphone app advertising InternetQ has evolved tremendously since its initial hsting, anticopating the market direction
and particularly, the overwhelming uptake for smartphones

In short, InternetQ provides large-scale mobile, soctal and app-driven marketing solutions that effectively leverage the
massive global adoption of connected devices
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MobiDialog

InternetQ’s proven mobile marketing platform produced another strong performance during 2012 Over the last 12
months, the platform delivered over 36 campaigns, working alongside over 150 mobile network operators and media
companies alike Our ability to rapidly implement targeted, interactive and measurable campaigns continues to fuel this
business, presenting a compelling and truly mass market platform Our web based interface enables all our campaigns to
be accessed, managed and maintained in real time

MobiDialog remains a core feature of our business and its ability to deliver profitable campaigns for our customers
throughout the duration of the campaign means 1t continues to appeal to marketing departments and finance team alike

AKAZOO

INTERNETQ's premium digital mobile content hub continues to gain market share in what 1s a highly interactive and socially
developed environment At present, Akazoo (accessible via Web & Mobile Apps) focuses on delivering localized music
content to subscribers located across 22 different countries, an increase of 8 countries compared to 2011 During the last
12 months, Akazoo added 1 4 million subscribers of which 0 2 million were paying for premium subscription services at an
average monthly revenue rate per subscriber €1 83 The AKAZOO service continues to grow in popularity, with Asia a key
region of growth

Given the heightened populanty for online music services, AKAZOO continues to thrive as demand for local content
alongside more mainstream tastes continues to drive subscriber growth In addition, the services mobile payment function
15 underpinrung our early success in key emerging terntories of South East Asia and Africa where credit card payment are
unpopular and molile commerce i1s more widespread

AKAZOO is a key technology mnitiative for the Group and remains crucial as we develop new services aimed at the next
generatton of tablet and smart phone devices Mobile commerce 15 very much entertainment based and this offering 1s
specially tailored for that audience

Minimob

InternetQ recently launched a value-added smartphone 'push notification’ platform in February 2013, which facilitates
commercial opportunities for App developers and publishers personalized promotions The Company’s strategic aim 1s to
ensure InternetQ is immersed in the app space, aligning ourselves with software developers

The platform enables App developers to maximise the success of their Apps, by allowng them to quickly set up
promotional campaigns and build a communication strategy, thereby extending the Iife and value of the App MiniMcb com
1s an industry first as 1t 1s the only completely free service to offer unhimited messaging to an infinite number of App end
users, with no third party advertisements

Minimob solves multiple systemic 1ssues that are holding back the success of traditional mobile advertising networks,
allowing for opt-in promotion campaigns that keep Apps ‘alive’ on handsets and generate significant operational co-
efficiencies Monetization of Mimimob occurs as a percentage of the revenue that App developers and publishers gain from
the personalized campaigns

Industry dynamics

in terms of the broader worid ecanomy, the emerging economies are still outpacing the more established econemies of
Europe and North America The IMF global economic outlook noted through 2013, that World output (in GDP terms)
should hit an improving 4 1 percent however ‘Emerging Asia’ will show the growth at a healthy 7 7 percent  INTERNETQ
continues to focus on the Asian markets where it already has built up a solid platform for growth and sees sigmificant
potential for expansion
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The global mobile outlock continues to remain strong Estimates are already pointing to 46 billion active users across
approximately 9 1 billion connections by 2015 (including a broadband base of 3 2 billion) InternetQ already has direct
access to 2 4 billion subscribers and growing fast

The outlook for Smartphone global penetration rates continues to accelerate InternetQ has pnmarily focused on Android,
which now has 75% of all smartphones being released globally It should be also noted that, for example, 1n countries lke
Singapore and Indonesia, smartphone sales have now reached 85% and 62% respectively of all mobile devices purchased
These remain key geographies for our business

Outlook

The last 12 months has seen a strong financial performance delivered by the Group with the Board noting that this trend
has continued Into the first quarter of 2013  Whilst our core mobile marketing initiatives continue to underpin this
performance, we do see a greater level of importance coming from our AKAZOO platform as we roll out the service
internationally The increase in smart phone penetration globally will drive this growth where we have made significant
investment in the platform

We continue to invest in market leading technology, as clearly demonstrated by the launch of our ‘Minimob’ app product,
which continues to receive favorable market feedback from industry experts Qur stated growth strategy I1s clear and we
will continue to evaluate target bolt-on acquisitions that accelerate the Group’s customer and geographical reach

2013 has started strongly and our new business pipeline remains strong Therefore, the Board remains confident that
trading will continue to develop in line with market expectations

Panagiotis Dimitropoulos
CEO & Founder
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Chief Financial Officer's Review

For the Financial Year 2012, INTERNETQ has comprehensively delivered its best ever performance in terms of revenues and
profits

The Company's performance, and collective abiiity to deal with the challenging operational environment during the past
year Is not only a result of strong operational execution but can also be attributed to our strategic approach to managing
costs, cash flow and our balance sheet

During 2012 we focused on the strict contro! of the Group’s operational expenses Cur aim in the past year has been to
reduce or ehminate all non-essential or embedded costs and to cut back on less profitable projects Secondly, we have
taken measures to reduce working capital needs and imprave cash converston

Group revenues 1n 2012 amounted to €73 4 million representing 47% growth compared to previous year (2011 €501
million), with all segments delivering substantial sales growth Revenues from Mobile Marketing activities grew by 40% to
€57 5 million {2011 € 41 2 million) while revenues from AKAZOO grew by 90% to € 11 4 million (2011 € 6 mullion}

Administration costs increased by 21% compared to the previous year, primarily due to the share incentive plan granted to
employees and to the share based payments related to the acquwsition of [-POP EBITDA grew by 64% to €10 6 milion
{2011 €6 5 million), a margin of 14 4% (2011 12 9%} Adjusted EBITDA grew by 66% to €12 2 million (2011 €7 4 million} a
margin of 16 7% (2011 14 7%) Profit after income tax for the year reached €6 million compared to €2 4 million for 2011
Adjusted Profit after Income tax for the year reached €7 7 milhon compared to €3 3 million for 2011 {ad)usted figures relate
to share incentive plans and acquisition costs amounting to €1 7 million — Note 9)

Investment in AKAZOO and Mini Mob platforms resulted in an increase in capital expenditure Total capital expenditure
including intangibles for the year ended 31 December 2012 stood at €7 9 mullion, an increase of 44% from the previous year
(2011 €5 S mullion)

The Group ended 2012 with €7 1 mifhon net cash (2011 €8 2 million), which consisted of €9 3 million (2011 €10 6 million)
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and €2 2 milhion (2011 €2 4 million) bank debt The terms and conditions of
the Group’s borrowing agreements continue to be relatively favourable Qur €05 million bond loan arrangement matures
in April 2013 and another €0 34 million term loan matures in March 2014

INTERNETQ 15 entering 2013 in a stronger financial position than the one we found ourselves at the beginning of 2012
having delivered financial results beyond expectations A sigmificant proportion of this success can be attnbuted to our
dedicated efforts to balance strict cost control with selective investment, to reduce working capital needs and increase cash
conversion, and to renforce the Group’s financial position

We have positioned the Group more strongly from an operational, as well as from a financial, standpoint, and we will
continue to capitalize on this position going forward

Veronica Nocett
Chief Financial Officer
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Directors and Executive Management

Konstantinos Korletis, Executive Chairman

Konstantinos Korletis joined the Group as a non-executive in 2008 and assumed his current role in November 2012 after
resigning from his role of Group CEO He holds a BSc in Marketing and an MBA from the New York University Stern School
of Business Lead positions included Vice President of Citigroup’s Corporate Finance Division in Greece, Chief Financial
Officer at AGP, a major industrial group, and General Manager of Liberis Meda, the leading consumer magazine publisher
and radio operator in Greece Konstantinos has managed companies with numbers of employees ranging from 500 te 2,000
and turnover from 75 mithon Euros to 250 mulhon Euros Furthermore, he has worked in public companies and has
managed several M&A transactions, capital raising initiatives such as IPO's, delistings and business and operational re-
organisations

Panagiotis Dimitropoulos, CEO & Founder

Panagiotis Dimitropoulos is an international entrepreneur and a well-respected expert in the mobile valued-added services
{MVAS) industry He founded INTERNETQ in 2000 and has grown the business to become one of the leading providers of
mobile marketing and digital entertainment solutions globally, listed on the London Stock Exchange’s AIM Under his
guidance the company has expanded its mohile services and global footprint to emerging markets including Asia and Latin
Amenca Pnor to founding InternetQ, he worked for 10 years in the banking sector and has authored a book on financial
dervatives He studied Law at Athens Unwersity and holds an MBA from the Athens Laboratory of Business He assumed
the role of CEQ in November 2012

Varonica Nocetti, Chief Financial Officer

Veronica Nocetti joined the Group as Chief Financial Officer in August 2010 She has a degree in Economics from North
Carolina State University and a Masters in International Management from Thunderbird AG S 1M She has extensive
International experience In project financing and international development, having worked in Sudan, the Middle East,
Malaysia, Romania and Greece Prior to joining the Group she worked for four years in Sudan as Chief Finance Officer of the
Real Estate Division of the largest conglomerate in the country Her managernial experience alse includes five years in a
senior role in a FTSE-40 histed company in Greece

Michael Joliffe, Non-Executive Director

Michael lolliffe 1s Deputy Chairman of Tsakos Energy Navigation SA, a shipping company which owns 51 tankers and 15
quoted on the New York Stock Exchange He s also Chairman of StealthGas Inc, a shipping company with a fleet of 46 LPG
and product tankers quoted on the Nasdag National Market In addition, he 15 @ Chairman of Wigham-Richardson
Shipbrokers Ltd, one of the oldest established shipbroking compames in the City of London, and of Shipping Spares Repairs
and Supplies Ltd, an agency company based in Piraeus, Greece Furthermore, he 1s the Joint President and Deputy
Chairman of Hanjin Eurcbulk Ltd, a joint venture between Hanjin Shipping Co Ltd of Seoul, Korea and Wigham-Richardson
Shipbrokers Ltd Michael Jolliffe 1s also Chief Executive Officer of Titans Mantime Ltd, a newly established shipping
company In the process of purchasing modern but second-- hand container and dry bulk ships Michael Joliffe 1s the
Chairman of Papua Mining Ltd, a company with gold and copper prospects in Papua New Guinea

lain Johnston, Non-Executive Director

lain fohnston 1s a Non-Executive Chairman of Event Marketing Solutions Ltd, a fast-growth experiential marketing business,
Non-Executive Director of Active Risk Group Plc, and CEO of The Hideaways Club Previously, he was CEO of the Loewy
Group, and Managing Director of customer database management start-up GB Information Management, from its
foundation in 1990 to its hsted status in 1998 Formerly a board member of the Direct Marketing Association, lain has been
a non-executive for a number of fast-growth marketing and technology businesses, including Alterian Plc where he was
Deputy Chairman
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Robert Beveridge, Non-Executive Director

Bob Beveridge joined the InternetQ Board in April 2012 He 1s a Chartered Accountant and has extensive and relevant
financial experience Since 1998 he has been finance director of three technology companies Cable & Wireless
Communications plc, Fast Search & Transfer Ltd, now a Microsoft subsicdhary, and Marlborough Stirling plc, which provided
information technology to the financial services industry Most recently he was finance director and company secretary of
McBride plc, a European manufacturer of household products He 1s a Non-Executive director and chair of the audit
committee at Hampshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, a not for profit public corporation He has previously held semor
roles in Mars inc and United Biscuits plc

Executive Management

Panagiotis Dimitropculos, CEO & Founder
The biography of Panagiotis Dimitropoulos 1s presented on page 8

Konstantinos Korletis, Executive Chairman
The biography of Konstantinos Korletis 1s presented on page 8

Verconica Nocetty, Chief Finanaial Officer
The biography of Veronica Nocetti s presented on page 8

Kenstantinos Papoutsis, Chief Commercial Officer

Kostas Papoutsis joined 1n 2009 He holds a degree in Electnical & Computer Engineering {AUTH) and an MBA (KUL/UCI -
USA) Prior to joining the company, he was the Vice President of Mobile Marketing at Velti, where he was acknowledged as
an industry innovator in mobile marketing campaigns Previous positions include senior roles at BT, Vedafone, Vizzav, and
General Motors

Michalis Zervakis, Vice President, Technology Infrastructure

Michalis Zervakis has been active with the Group since 2002 and he 1s the chief architect of the IT infrastructure that hosts
over 500 services and supports global operations, managmng server rooms in three different countries He s a graduate of
Athens University in Business & Economics

Apostolos N Zervos, Vice President, Business Development AKAZOO

Apostolos N Zervos joined INTERNETQ in 2010 He s responsible for strategy development, service design and operations
of the Group’s AKAZOO entertainment service offering He holds a degree in Philosophy & Economics from Yale University
Prior to joining, he was at Velt plc, where he served as a Corporate Program Manager for Product & Solution Marketing
and as a Semor Manager of Innovation He has held other senior management positions at Ellemedia Technologies, Lucent
Technologies, Bell labs as well as Algosystems
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Directors’ Report
INTERNETQ PLC Registered company number 5512988

Activities

The Greup offers mobile marketing solutions and digital entertainment that enables brands, mobile netwaork operators and
media companies to design and implement targeted, interactive and measurable campagns by engaging with and
entertaining mobile network subscribers via their mobile devices

Business Review

For the operating and financial review of the business dunng the year please refer to the Chief Executive Officer's Review
on pages 4 to 6 and Chief Financial Officer’s Review on page 7 included within the Annual Report For future developments
please refer to the outlook sectton on the Chief Executive Officer’s review on page 6

Finanaal

The Group's results reflect a robust performance in a challenging market Revenues were €73 4 miltion for the year, an
increase of €23 4 million, or 47% on last year The results for the year are presented in the financial statements at the end
of this Annual Report For further information about financial performance please refer to the CFO review included In the
annual report

Dwidend policy
At present, the Directors consider that it 1s appropriate to retain cash to fund the expansion of the Group and as a result,
feel it 1s inappropriate to give an indication of the likely level or timing of any future dwidend payout

Research and development

The Group continues to invest In market leading technology and on product innovation, as we develop new services aimed
to meet the speciahced needs of our customers and to cope with market trends The Group’s research and development
activities rely on internal investment and on the adoption of stringent software engeenaring practices in order to maximise
and ensure the high quality, effectiveness and usuability of applications developed INTERNETQ has developed platforms
that enable its clients to run multiple large scale promotional campaigns that can elevate market profiles Additionally
INTERNETQ's music platform enables operators and brands to offer rich mobile conetent engagement The Group's latest
development Minimob provides a full suite of messaging and content delivery tools, including Push notifications Rich media
messaging and Subscriptions allowing the Group’s customers to maximise the success of thewr applications

Supplier Policy of the Company

Company Creditors relate mainly to costs associated with being histed in the London Stock Exchange’s AIM Due to the
nature and relative immatenal payable amounts, the Company does not have a supplier payment policy Average creditors
days for the year ended 31 December 2012 15 124 days {2011 54 days)

Employee Involvement

The Group operates an environment which encourages that the working place is a learning setting  We value transparent
and open communication and support the advancement and shaning of information related to economic, human and
financial matters affecting performance through the Group’s electronic workspace The workspace 15 also a location where
employees are encouraged to share their suggestions, views, or ideas across the entire organization The transparent and
open flow of ideas s further maintained through regutar work group meetings held between management where they are
encouraged to ask questions and feel part of the strategy of the Group

10
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Equal employment opportunity

INTERNETQ is commutted to the creation of a work environment in which fairness, trust and individual responsibibty are
cherished We believe that talented and dedicated employees are our most valuable asset and that everyone should be
given an equal opportunity to succeed

The Company 1s committed to equal opportunity in emplayment and to creating, managing and valuing diversity in its
workforce The Company does not unlawfully discnminate with respect to hinng, promotion, compensation, training and
assignment of responsibilities, termination, or any other aspect of the employment relationship on the basis of race, color,
national origin, religion, sex, age, sexual erientation, marital status, phystcal or mental disabiity

Environment

The Group 1s cognisant of its carbon footprint and 1s committed to the planet that sustains us We are continuously striving
to increase sustainabihity efforts and have developed a thorough company-wide action plan targeted at conservation of
resources Qur efforts include energy-saving technology integration, responsible product design, resource conservation,
recycling with responsible end of life electronics management and green information technology practices

Soaal

At INTERNETQ, we are committed to operating responsibly in all aspects of our business, including enrnching the
communities where we operate and creating an inclusive, safe and healthy workplace We know that mohile technology is
a great way to bring people together and bulld commumities that 1s why at the core of our Corporate and Social
Responsibility (“CSR”} efforts we use the same expertise, technology and partnerships we use in working with our
customers We believe that CSR ts both our responsibility and an essential part of good management As we navigate
through our growth transition, we remain committed to integrating CSR initiatives into our business, not only to enrich and
contnbute to the lives of the communities we work and live, but also to create tangible value for our employees,
customers, and shareholders

Principal risks and Uncertainties

Management and control of risks within the Group 15 embedded within day to day operating procedures The Group has
developed a comprehensive risk mitigation plan to ensure minimum exposure and secure solutions These procedures
comprise a range of measures including corporate policies, operating rules, systematic reporting, external audits, self-
assessment and continuous monitoring by the Board of Directors and the executive management team

The Group operates globally in vaned markets and the principal risks and uncertainties have been reviewed by the Board
together with agreed mitigating actions The most significant nisks and uncertainties and mitigation actions are outlined
below

Business Risks

e Recruitment and retention- Technological and marketing competence and innovation 1s critical to the Group’s
perfarmance and s highly dependent on the expertise of the Directors and key employees The Group has share
incentive plans which award shares to more than 30 employees with a vesting penod of twenty four months Moreover,
the Group has competitive remuneration packages in place te secure the services of these Directors and key employees

o Maintaiming a stable service infrastructure and rehable service dehvery- The Group takes steps to ensure the
continuous and ongoing function of the Company's technological infrastructure and proprietary software platforms by
enhancing and improving its platforms’ capabilities Additionally the Group has developed and implemented a disaster
recovery plan to ensure ongoing function

¢ Impact of eveolving technology — The Group is 1n a continuous process of evaluating potential negative effects of
evolving technology in advance, in order to take suitable actions to mitigate this risk In this direction, the management
1s focused on product innovation to cope with market trends The newly launched Minimob service illustrates the result
of our continuous product development program Moreover, the Group’s ability to anticipate and respond quickly to
technology opportunities is a key strength of our business

11
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s Maintaining and expanding current, and developing new, customer relationships — The Group’s carmmercial strategy
to mitigate this nsk 1s working closely with 1ts regional partners to expand business in all exisuing markets and enter into
new ones Additionally the Group 1s focusing on developing strategic partnerships and operators’ deals for terntory
expansion The Management regularly manitors the communications with all top clients and ensures multiple contacts
with each client

¢ Comphance with local laws and regulations — The Group operates in various countries with different regulatory
frameworks and therefore 1s expesed to the risk of frequent regulatory changes in less established legal systems
Adverse and increased regulations can affect significantly the existing business and potential growth The management
1s partially mitigating this risk by assessing the regulatory environment and legal system before entering into new
markets The Group 1s also implementing strong code of contact across all operations Moreover the Management
closely monitors the regulatory environment of all key markets and communicates frequently with the Group’s legal
adwisors for such matters

* Risks resulting from International operations - The Group 15 exposed to a variety of other risks and challenges in
managing an organization operating in various countnes, including those related to, general economic and political
conditions in each country or region, overlapping tax regimes, reduced protection for intellectual preperty nghts in
some countries, and maintaining effective control in less developed, emerging markets The Group i1s mitigating this risk
by establishing its presence across a wide range of territories Moreover the Group has i/mplemented an internal
control process over all Group Companies including, common financial systems and reporting, internal audit projects to
reinforce controls and procedures, and strong HR processes Furhtermore, please refer to Note 29 Finanaial nsk
management objectives and policies to the financial statements, for the Group’s Country risk assessment

Financial Risks

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s exposure to the nsk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates With respect to long-term borrowings, Management monitars on a constant basis
the interest rate vartances and evaluates the need for assuming certain positions for the hedging of such risks Additionally
the Group’s long-term debt obligations decreased during 2012 Further information about the financial risk management
objectives and policies 1s disclosed in note 29

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primanly to the Group’s operating activities
(when revenues or expenses are dencminated in a different currency from the Group’s presentation currency} and the
Group's net investments in foreign subsicharies The Group 1s active internationally and 1s exposed to variations in foreign
currency exchange rates which arise mainly from Polish ZLOTY, Singaporean Dollar, UK pound and Turkish Lira The Group®s
exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies 1s not material There 1s no foreign currency risk relating to
financial instruments as there are no such instruments

Credit Risk

The Group 1s exposed to credit nisk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables and loan notes) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financaial instruments

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with a high credit standing Long term and
ongoing relationship with customers mininize the risk of bad debts For the Group’s credit policy refer to Note 18

The Group’s maximurm exposure to credit risk, due to the faillure of counter parties to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011, in relation to each class of recognized financial assets, 1s the carrying amount of
those assets as indicated in the accompanying statements of financial position

12




internetq’
a INTERNETQ PLC Annual Report 2012

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages hquidity nsk by monitoring forecasted cash flows and ensuring that adequate banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities are mantained The Group has sufficient undrawn committed and uncommitted borrowing
facilittes that can be utihized to fund any potential shortfall in cash resources

Prudent hquidity sk management implies the availabibty of funding through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities, cash and marketable securities and the ability to close out those positions as and when required by the business
or project

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios In order to support its operations and maximize shareholder value The Group’s policy 1s to maintain leverage
targets in line with an investment grade profile The Group monitors capital using Net Debt to EBITDA ratio and establishes
the desirable ranges based on the market’s (peers) average ratios that 1s Net Debt four to five times the EBITDA

The Group includes within Net Debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents {excluding
restricted cash) EBITDA i1s defined by adding back to {or subtracting from) profit after tax, income tax, finance costs and
finance income and depreciation and amortization expenses The Group at the end of 2012 had net funds of € 6 5 mullion
compared to net funds of € 7 3 million at the end of the previous year [please refer to note 29 - the Capital Management
note in the financial statements}

Share Capital

INTERNETQ PLC hsted on the AIM market on 6 Decernber 2010 with a placing at £1 20 per share The share price of the
Company was £1 72 as at 31 December 2012 The i1ssued share capital of the Company 1s denominated 1n British pounds
sterling (GBP) As at 15 March 2013, there were 34,795,468 ordinary shares issued and outstanding

The graph below presents the performance of the Company’s share on the London Stock Exchange’s AIM for the year
ended 31 December 2012
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As at 15 March 2013, the Company had the following shareholders with direct or indirect interest of 3% or more of the
1ssued and outstanding share capital of the Company

Shares Percentage

Shareholders
Panagtotis Dimitropoulos 18,268,750 52 65%
Legal & General Investment Management 5,219,166 15 04%
Standard Life Investment 1,352,946 390%
Ignis Asset Management 1,040,923 3 00%
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Going Concern

The Directors, after considering the risks and uncertainties set out on pages 11 and 12 and after reviewing the Group’s
operating budgets, investment plans and financing arrangements, consider that the Group and the Company have sufficient
resources at therr disposal to continue their operations for the foreseeable future Accordingly, the financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis

Events after the reporting period
For significant events after the reporting period please refer to Note 30

Directors’ Statement as to Disclosure of Information to Auditors

Having made enquinies of fellow directors and of the Company’s auditors, each director confirms that to the best of each
director’s knowledge and belief, there 1s no information relevant to the preparation of their report of which the Company’s
auditors are unaware

The Directors of the Company have taken all the steps that they might reasonably be expected to have taken as directors in
order to make themselves aware of any information needed by the Company’s auditor in connection with preparing their
report and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information

Auditors
There 1s no imitation of liability in the terms of appointment of the Auditor The Company’s Auditors for the next year will
be appointed in the Annual General Meeting that will take place in May 2013

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by
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Directors’ remuneration report

Directors’ Remuneration

The Board recognizes that Directors’ remuneration is of legitimate interest to the shareholders The Group operates within
a competitive environment, performance depends on the individual contributions of the Directors and employees and it
believes in rewarding vision and innovation

As an AIM company INTERNETQ 15 not required to (and does not) comply with the requirements of Schedule 8 to the Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008

Policy on Directors’ remuneration

The policy of the Board 1s to provide executive remuneration packages designed to attract, motivate and retain Directors of
the calibre necessary to maintain the Group’s position and to reward them for enhancing shareholder value and return It
aims to provide sufficient levels of remuneration to do this, but to avoid paying more than i1s necessary The remuneration
will also reflect the Director’s responsibility and contains incentives to deliver the Group’s objectives

Under the Non-executive directors’ deferred share plan, the Company may at its discretion award shares in discharge of its
obligations to pay remuneration, any Director’s fee or make any other payment under their appointment letters The terms
of the Non-Executive Directors share payments are determined by the Company’s remuneration committee and approved
by the Company’s Board of Directors, on a yearly basis

Under the Employees’ Share Incentive Plan (including Executive Directors), shares of the Company are granted to
employees subject to satisfaction of certain performance conditions which are based on earmings-based targets The
remuneration committee 1s responsible for defining on a yearly basis the ehgible employees as well as specific earnings-
based targets Such performace conditions were chosen in line with market practise

The remuneration of the Directors (including share incentive plans and share based payments) was as follows (all amounts
In eurp)

Basic Share Share Defined
salary and incentive based henefit Total Total
fees Benefits plan payments plan 2012 2011
Konstantinos Korletis
{Chairman) 152,999 74,319 - 107,525 - 334,843 233,521
Stuart Cruickshank
{prior chairman) 79,837 - - 76,001 - 155,838 63,565
Panagiotis Dimitropoulos
{Founder and CEQ) 188,399 17,667 57,837 - 2,526 266,929 210,928
Veronica Nocett
{Chief Financial Officer) 106,485 18,399 51,025 - 1,438 177,347 155,701
Michael Jolliffe
(Non-executive Director) 23,120 - - 45,567 - 68,687 46,580
lan Johnston
{Non-executive Director) 37,999 - - 30,376 - 68,375 49,423
Robert Bevendge
(Non-executive Director) 25,102 - - 10,129 - 35,231
614,441 110,385 108,862 269,598 3,964 1,107,250 760,118

For further information please refer to Note 26 and Note 27 of the accompanying financial statements
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The number of shares under the share incentive plan {for executive Directors) and the deferred share incentive plan (for
Non-executive Directors} are as follows

At 1January  Granted during At 31 December
2012 the year 2012
No No No
Konstantinos Korletis {Chairman) - 40,000 40,000
Stuart Cruickshank (pnor Chairman} 10,416 26,921 37,337
Panagiotis Dimitropoulos {Founder and CEO) - 40,000 40,000
Veronica Nocetti {Cheef Financial Officer) 25,000 15,000 40,000
Michael Jolliffe (Non-executive Director) 15,625 15,625 31,250
lan Johnston {Non-executive Director) 10,416 10,416 20,832
Rohert Bevendge (Non-executive Director) - 4,629 4,629
61,457 152,591 214,048
The directors interests in shares as of 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 are as follows
At 31 December At 31
2012 December 2011
No No
Konstantinos Korietis (Executive Chairman) 501,875 1,000,000
Stuart Crurckshank (pnior Chairman) 37,337 10,416
Panagiotis Dimitropoulos {Founder and CEQ} 18,268,750 18,150,000
Verontca Nocetti (Chief Financial Officer) 40,000 25,000
Michael Joihffe (Non-executive Director) 31,250 15,625
lan Johnstan (Non-executive Director) 20,832 10,416
Robert Beveridge (Non-executive Director) 4,629 -
18,904,673 19,211,457

Konstantinos Korletis in 2012 sold a total number of 550,000 of Company’s shares resulting to a total gain of 1 2 million UK
pounds (€1 5 million)

On April 2012, Bob Beveridge was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Company and as the new Chairman of the
Audit Committee On October 2012, Stuart Cruickshank announced his retirement of the Company’s board of directors as
the Non-executive Chairman Konstantinos Korletis (prior Chief Executive Officer) was elected to the new role of Executive
Chairman, while Panagiotis Dimitropoulos, {(Founder of the Company) was appointed Chief Executive Officer

Panagiotis Dimitropoulos entered into a service agreement with InternetQ Telecommurnication and internet services S A (a
direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) on August 2005 Pursuant to this agreement his employment as a director
of the Company may be terminated by either party giving 12 months’ notice to the other party or in the case of the
Company with immediate effect for cause

Konstantinos Korletis entered into an empioyment agreement with InternetQ Telecommunication and internet services S A
(a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) on Apnil 2010 Pursuant to this agreement the employment 1s indefinite
and may be terminated with or without notice according to the relevant prowision of Greek employment legislation at the
time According to the employment agreement Konstantinos Korletis has the right to receive a bonus of at least 25% of his
annual salary condittonal on the Company achieving certain performance targets Konstantinos Korletis was a Non-
Executive member of the Board before becoming the Group’s CEQ in Apnl 2010 and Executive Chairman in November
2012

Veronica Nocetti entered into a service agreement with InternetQ Telecommunication and internet services S A (a direct
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) on December 2010 Pursuant to this agreement her employment 1s indefirite
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and may be terminated by either party giving 6 months’ notice to the other Additionally Veronica Nocetts entered into a
service agreement with the Company in December 2010

Stuart Cruickshank was appomted in December 2010 The appointment was for an initial term of three years to be
reviewed annually and was terminable on three months’ notice by the Director and six months’ notice by the Company On
24 October 2012, Stuart Cruickshank announced his retirement from the Company’s Board of directors as the Non-
executive Chairman

tain Johnston was appointed in December 2010 The appointment 15 for an imtial term of three years to be reviewed
annually and 1s terminable on three months’ notice by the Director and six months’ notice by the Company

Michael Jolliffe was appointed in December 2010 The appointment 1s for an imtial term of two years to be reviewed
annually and terminable on three months’ notice by the Director and six months’ notice by the Company

Robert Beveridge was appointed in Aprnil 2012 The appointment is for an imitial term of 3 years to be rewewed annually and
terminable on three months’ notice by the Director and six months’ notice by the Company

The above service and employment agreements do not provide for any compensation payable on termination of the

Directors, and are in line with the Company’s policy on the duration of these agreements Additionally these agreements do
not provide for performance related element except as stated above

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

lain Johnston
(Chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee}
9 Apnl 2013
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Corporate Governance Report

As INTERNETQ listed on AIM 1in December 2010 the Company has chosen not to comply with the 2010 UK Corporate
Governance Code However, the corporate governance framework we are implementing is aimed at enabhng us to
voluntarily comply with the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code in the future

The Board

The Responsibiities and Objectives of the Board

The Board's principal responsibility 1s to act in the best interests of the shareholders as a whole within the legal framework
of the Companies Act 2006 The Board establishes the aims and objectives for the Company, approves the strategic
direction and plans and the operating budgets proposed by the Chief Executive Officer, and monitors performance against
them The Board ts also responsible for identifying the key risks faced by the Group, for exercising proper and appropriate
corporate governance, for establishing and ensuring the effectiveness of the company’s systems of internal control and
reviewing management performance

The Composstion of the Board
The Board comprises of six directors, three of whom are independent non-executive directors The composition of the
Board i1s outlined in the Directors and Executive Management section (page 8)

The Operation of the Board

The Board has agreed on five scheduled meetings a year, but 1s committed to convene via conference calls whenever
required A schedule of meetings and principal matters to be discussed is set out at the beginning of each year The Board
delegates certain of its responsibilities to committees which are described below The Board determines the chairmanship
and membership of the committees Minutes of those committee meetings are circulated to Board members prior to each
Board meeting During 2012 11 Board meetings were held

There 15 a schedule of key operational matters reserved for Board Approval, including significant long-term obhgations,
acquisitions and divestments above certain levels, the raising of new capital and entering inte Ioan agreements The Board
delegates the day-to-day management of the business to the executive directors

Commuttees of the Board

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee members are all independent non-executive directors The Chairman of the Committee 1s Robert
Beveridge and the other members of the Committee are lain Johnston and Michael Joliffe The Audit Committee determine
and examine matters relating to the financial affairs of the Group including the terms of engagement of the Group auditors
and, in consuttation with the auditors, the scope of their audit The Committee receives and reviews reports from
management and the external auditors relating to the annual accounts and the accounting and the internal control systems
In use throughout the Group

The Executive Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the external auditors are given notice of
all meetings and may be invited to attend The Committee and the external auditors meet formally, without the presence
of any executive directors, at least once a year, (n order to discuss any 1ssues or concerns from either party

Nomnation Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of Michael Jolliffe, lain lohnston and Panagiotis Dinutropoulos and 1t 1s chared by
Michael Jolhffe The Nomination Committee wil monitor the size and composition of the Board and the other Committees,
it 1s responsible for identifying suitable candidates for Board membership and it monitors the performance and suitability
of the current Board on an ongoing basis
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee 1s compnised of the non-executive directors, Robert Beveridge, and Michael Jolliffe and 15
chaired by lain Johnston Stuart Cruickshank was alsc a member of the Committee until he resigned from the Board of
Directors in October 2012 The Remuneration Committee reviews and makes recommendations in respect of the Directors’
remunerations and benefit packages, including share options and the terms of appointment The Remuneration Committee
also makes recommendations to the Board concerning share incentive plans

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Panagiotis Dimitropoulos
CEO & Founder
9 Apnl 2013

19




internetq
a INTERNETQ PLC Annual Report 2012

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as
adopted for use in the European Union Under company taw the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group and the profit
or loss of the Company and the Group for that period in preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required
to

®  Present fairly the financial position, financiat performance and cash flows of the Group and the Company,

o Select suitable accounting policies in accordance with 1AS 8- Accounting policies, changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors and then apply them consistently,

*  Present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provide relevant, reliable, consistent and
understandable information,

»  Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonabhle,

e State whether applicable IFRS {as adopted in the EU) have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

s  Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS {(as adopted in the EU) 15
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of transactions, other events and conditions on the Group
and Company'’s financial position and financial performance, and

*  Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s iInappropnate to presume the Group and
the Company will continue 1in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group
and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the finanoal position of the Group and the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonabie steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and otherirregulanties

The Directors are also responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report, and the Directors’ Remuneration Report in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of INTERNETQ PLC

We have audited the financial statements of INTERNETQ PLC for the year ended 31 December 2012 which comprise the
Group and Company Income Statements, the Group and Company Statements of comprehensive income, the Group and
Company Statements of financial position, the Group and Company Statements of changes in equity, the Group and
Company Statements of cash flows, and the related notes 1 to 30 The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set ocut on page 20, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our responsibility 1s to
audit and express an opimion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of signiftcant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the
financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to 1dentify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opimion
e the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2012 and of the group’s profit and the parent company’s loss for the year then ended,
s« the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, and
¢ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Compantes Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are

prepared I1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, In our opinion

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have

not been received from branches not visited by us, or

s the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specifted by law are not made, or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

—
Nick Gomer {Senior statutory auditor) L;\% - \LD c (—)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London
9 Apnl 2013
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Income Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012

INTERNETQ PLC

{Amounts in Euro except share information, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2012

Group Company

Notes 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues 73,431,504 50,076,541 -
Cost of sales 9 (35,187,749) (26,603,228) - -
Gross profit 38,243,755 23,473,313 - -
Other operating income 174,273 765,123 - -
Selling and distnibution costs 9 (26,511,544} (15,780,609} {135,129) (120,386)
Administrative expenses 9 (4,779,444)  (3,942,373) (2,150,503) {811,739}
Operating profit / {loss) 7,127,040 4,015,454 (2,285,632} (932,125)
Finance costs 10 (586,818)  {1,042,659} (296,441) (486,317)
Finance income 10 361,065 288,023 309,479 114,369
Profit / (loss) before tax 6,901,287 3,260,818 (2,272,594) (1,304,073)
Income tax 11 {899,587) {840,099) - -
Profit / (loss) after income tax 6,001,700 2,420,719 (2,272,594) (1,304,073}
Attnibutable to
Equity holders of the parent 6,001,700 2,420,719 (2,272,594) {1,304,073)
Earnings per share basic 12 018 008
Earnings per share diluted 12 018 008
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Statements of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2012

{(Amounts in Euro except share information, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2012

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Profit / (loss) for the year 6,001,700 2,420,719 (2,272,594} {1,304,073)
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations net of tax 511,432 464,085 408,026 1,531,580
Other comprehensive incoeme / (loss) for the year 511,432 464,085 408,026 1,531,980
Total comprehensive income/ {loss) for the year 6,513,132 2,884,804 {1,864,568) 227,907
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 6,513,132 2,884,804 (1,864,568) 227,907
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Statements of financial position
As at 31 December 2012

(Amounts in Euro except share information, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2012

Group Company

Notes 2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 2,185,663 2,067,758 - -
Investment property 14 505,700 535,000 - -
Investment (n subsidiaries 15 - - 6,209,402 5,865,272
Goodwill 7 3,097,051 2,910,315 - -
Intangible assets 16 11,292,011 7,017,598 - -
Non-current financial assets 17 2,602,605 - 2,602,605 -
Other non-current assets 102,607 89,533 . -
Deferred tax assets 11 452,121 924,184 - -
Total non-current assets 20,237,758 13,544,388 8,812,007 5,865,272
Current assets
Trade recevables 18 30,406,390 12,419,804 - -
Prepayments and other receivables 19 2,889,232 13,617,921 22,889,344 13,049,576
Current financial assets 17 102,519 - 102,519 -
Cash and cash equivalents 20 8,697,402 9,657,296 1,229,618 6,344,914
Restricted cash 20 633,538 926,136 210,357 645,835
Total current assets 42,729,081 36,621,157 24,431,838 20,040,325
Total assets 62,966,839 50,165,545 33,243,845 25,905,597
Equity and habihities
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company
Share capital 21 105,345 94,884 105,345 94,884
Share premium 21 34,227,669 25,376,214 34,227,669 25,376,214
Other components of equity 21 1,159,047 936,057 1,199,047 936,057
Exchange differences 647,671 136,239 1,262,002 853,976
Retained Earnings 10,900,407 4,898,707 (3,793,846) (1,521,252}
Total equity 47,080,139 31,342,101 33,000,217 25,739,879
Non-current habilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 22 240,100 841,900 - -
Employee benefits lability 25 31,463 27,668 - -
Provisions 28 51,830 66,130 - -
Deferred tax liability 11 173,467 153,920 - -
Total non-current liabihties 496,860 1,085,618 - -
Current liabilities
Trade payables 23 10,807,890 7,719,152 215,452 76,341
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 22 1,380,509 1,381,231 - -
Current portion of interest-bearing loans and borrowings 22 601,800 143,468 - -
Income tax payable 673,677 860,957 - -
Accruals and other current habibities 24 1,925,964 7,529,018 28,176 89,377
Total current habilities 15,389,840 17,633,826 243,628 165,718
Total habilities 15,886,700 18,723,444 243,628 165,718
Total equity and habilities 62,966,839 50,165,545 33,243,845 25,905,597
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
Panagiotis Dimitropoulos .
Chief Executive-8fficer qu'[ AFY‘U(/ 2-0‘ 5
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Statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2012

{Amounts in Euro except share information, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2012

Group Share Share compog;:‘:sr Exchange Retained Total
capnal premium of equity differences Earnings
Balance at 1 January 2011 79,400 9,203,906 - {327,846} 2,477,988 11,433,448
Profit after income tax - - - - 2,420,719 2,420,719
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - - 464,085 - 464,085
Total comprehensive income - - - 464,085 2,420,719 2,884,804
Share capital increase (Note 21) 15,484 16,814,493 - - - 16,829,977
Transaction costs (Note 21) - {642,185) - - - {642,185)
Contingent Consideration (Note 7) - - 936,057 - - 936,057
Balance at 31 December 2011 94,884 25,376,214 936,057 136,239 4,898,707 31,442,101
Balance at 1 January 2012 94,884 25,376,214 936,057 136,239 4,898,707 31,442,101
Profit after ncome tax - - - - 6,001,700 6,001,700
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - - 511,432 - 511,432
Total comprehensive income - - - 511,432 6,001,700 6,513,132
Share capital increase (Note 21) 10,461 8,522,109 - - - 8,532,570
Transaction costs {Note 21) - {375,835) - - - {379,835)
Share incentive plan (Note 21} - - 232,781 - - 232,781
Contingent consideration {Note 21) - 709,181 {522,445) - - 186,736
e s R .
Balance at 31 December 2012 105,345 34,227,669 1,199,047 647,671 10,900,407 47,080,139
Company Share Share com pog::i: Exchange Retained Total
capital premium of equity differences Earnings
Balance at 1 January 2011 79,400 9,203,906 - (678,004) {212,179) 8,388,123
Loss after income tax - - - - {1,304,073) (1,304,073)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - - 1,531,980 - 1,531,980
Total comprehensive income - - - 1,531,980 (1,304,073) 227,807
Share capital increase (Note 21) 15,484 16,814,493 - - - 16,829,977
Transaction costs (Note 21) - (642,185} - - - (642,185)
Contingent Consideration {(Note 7) - - 936,057 - - 936,057
Balance at 31 December 2011 94,884 25,376,214 936,057 853,976 (1,521,252) 25,739,879
Balance at 1 January 2012 94,884 25,376,214 936,057 853,976 (1,521,252) 25,739,879
Loss after income tax - - - - {2,272,554) {2,272,594)
Other comprehensive income/(ioss) - - - 408,026 - 408,026
Total comprehensive income /{loss}) - - - 408,026 (2,272,5594) {1,854,568)
Share capital increase (Note 21) 10,461 8,522,109 - - - 8,532,570
Transaction costs {Note 21) - {379,835) - - - (379,835)
Share incentive plan (Note 21) - - 232,781 - - 232,781
Contingent consideration (Note 21) - 709,181 (522,445) - - 186,736
?:gzz tz)i;ed payments for Business Combinations ) ) 552,654 ) ) 552,654
Balance at 31 December 2012 105,345 34,227,669 1,199,047 1,262,002 (3,793,846) 33,000,217
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Statements of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2012

{Amounts in Euro except share information, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

Annual Report 2012

Group Company

Notes 2012 2011 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/ (loss) before income taxes 6,901,287 3,260,818 (2,272,554) {(1,304,072)
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation 3,449,939 2,442,659 - -
Valvation of investment property 29,300 72,000 -
Loss / {gans) on disposal of property, plant, and equipment 10,076 (13,842)
Losses on disposal of intangible assets - 12,130 - -
Finance income {181,896) (100,618} {309,479) {114,368)
Finance costs 390,394 428,286 41,064 89,898
Reahsed gains on dervatives - {6,328) - -
Share incentive plan expense 487,917 343,960 487,917 343,960
Non-Executive Directors share incentive plan expense 269,598 50,409 269,598 50,409
Share based payments for business combinations 895,518 - 895,518
Allowance for doubtful trade and other recevables 122,438 268,892 - -
Reversal of provision (14,300) {59,870} - -
Prowision for employee benefits hability 85,592 47,737 - -
Net cash before working capital changes 12,445,863 6,746,233 (887,976) (934,173)
{Increase)/ decrease in
Trade receivables (18,023,830}  (7.,578,313) {23,859) -
Prepayments and other receivables 10,449,686 {9,746,353) (9,620,951) (12,050,756)
QOther non-current assets {13,074) {2,546) - -
Increasef {decrease)} in
Trade payables 2,853,344 3,441,331 139,110 {31,098)
Accruals and other current habihities (5,629,414) 2,781,088 (61,202) 14,965
Income taxes paid {387,521} (889,122} - -
Payment of employee benefits hability (81,797) (36,572) - -
Other non-current habilities - {300) - -
Net cash from operating activities 1,613,257 (5,284,554} {10,454,878) {13,001,062)
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditure for property, plant and equipment {723,966) (1,586,657} - -
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 43,591 25,986 - -
Increase of iIntangible assets (6,936,563) (4,042,151) - -
Acquisibion of subsidianes {net of cash acquired) - 359,163 - -
Decrease / (Increase) In restricted bank accounts 292,595 (407,617) 435,479 {645,835)
Interest and related income received 106,500 95,879 53,053 41,948
Net cash (used in} / from Investing Activities (7,217,839)  (5,515,397) 488,532 {603,887)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issuance of share capntal 7,281,368 12,836,487 7,281,368 12,836,487
Purchase of financial assets {2,639,886) - {2,639,886) -
Payments of long term borrowings (143,468) (143,468) - -
Payment of short term borrowings (723} (891,719) - -
Finance costs pa:d {364,035) {408,056} {41,064} {89,898)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities 4,133,256 11,393,244 4,600,418 12,746,589
Effect of exchange rates’ changes on flows and cash 511,432 429,398 250,632 1,544,381
Net (decrease) / increase n cash and cash equivalents {959,894} 1,022,691 (5,115,296) 686,021
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,657,296 8,634,605 6,344,914 5,658,893
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 20 8,697,402 9,657,296 1,229,618 6,344,914
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements
Faor the year ended 31 December 2012
(Amounts in Euro except share information, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

INTERNETQ PLC (hereinafter referred to as “INTERNETQ PLC” or the “Company”}, 15 incorporated in England and Wales The
Company’s registered office 1s located in 5t Botoiph Building, 138 Houndsditch, London EC3A 7AR, United Kingdom and the
Registered No 1s 5512988 The Company’s ordinary shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange in the Alternative
Investment Market (AIM)

INTERNETQ PLC and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the “"Group”) are mainly engaged in trading and development of software
and related products and services used in wireless communication and telecommurication The activities of the Group are
described in Note 15

2 Basis of Preparation

{a) Basis of preparation and statement of comphance

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for investment properties that
have been measured at farr value The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union {EU) and in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 The Directors have assessed the ability of the Company and the Group to continue operating as a
going concern and believe that the preparation of these financial statements on the going concern basis i1s appropriate

The preparation of the financial statements, 1n accordance with IFRS as endorsed by the EU, requires the use of critical
accounting estimates It also requires management to exercise 1ts judgment in the process of applying the accounting
policies which have been adopted The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to financial statements are disclosed in Note 5

The financial statements of INTERNETQ PLC for the year ended 31 December 2012 were authonsed for 1ssue by the
Company’s board of directors on 9 April 2013

{b) Basis of Consohdation

The accompanying financial statements comprnise the financial statements of INTERNETQ PLC and sts subsidiaries The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies All intercompany balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intercompany
transactions and dividends are eliminated in full

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtarns control, and
continue to be consohdated untit the date such control ceases When there 1s a loss of control of a subsidiary the
conschdated financial statements include the results for the part of the reporting period duning which the parent had
control

Losses are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance A change in the ownership
interest of a subsiciary, without a loss of control, i1s accounted for as an equity transaction

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, 1t
* Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and habilities of the subsidiary
e Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest
* Derecognises the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity
* Recognises the fair value of the consideration received
* Recognises the farr value of any investment retained
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* Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

» Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive iIncome to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate

3. Summary of significant accounting polictes
The principal accounting pelicies adopted in the preparation of the accompanying finanoial statements are as follows

{a) Business combtnations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisiion method The cost of an acquisition 1s measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
Interest In the acquiree For each business combiation, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interest
in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets Acquisition costs
incurred are expensed and included in administrative expenses

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and habihties assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date Thisincludes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree

If the business combination is achteved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously heid equity
interest in the acquiree 1s remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date through profit or toss

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or hability that 1s a financial instrument and within the scope of 1AS 39
Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement, 1s measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised either
in either profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income If the contingent consideration 15 not withun the
scope of IAS 39, 1t is measured In accordance with the appropriate IFRS Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
1s not remeasured and subsequent settlement 1s accounted for within equity

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and habihities assumed If the fair value of
the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the gain 1s recognised in profit or loss

After imitial recognition, goodwill 15 measured at cost less any accumulated imparrment losses For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, rrespective of whether other assets or
habihties of the acquiree are assigned to those units

Where goodwl! has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit 15 disposed of, the
goodwll associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on disposal Goodwill disposed in these circumstances 1s measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained

{b) Foreign currency translation*
The Company's functtonal currency 1s the British Pound, while each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and the items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency

However, the consolidated and separate financial statements are presented wn Euro, in the context that this presentation
reflects better the substance of the Group” activities

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition

28




e "N "N mm e o S



Peppepme——————— W W W N "

internetq’
Q INTERNETQ PLC Annual Report 2012

Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign operation These are
recognised in other comprehensive income until the net investment 1s disposed of, at which time, the cumulative amount 15
reclassified to profit or loss Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foereign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value 1s determined The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at far value 1s treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item {1 e, translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss 15 recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss are also recogmised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively)

Any goodwill anising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any farr value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and habilities ansing on the acquisition are treated as assets and habtlities of the foreign operation and translated at
the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date

Group companies

On consohidation, the assets and habilities of foreign operations are translated into euros at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the reporting date and therr income statements are translated at exchange rates prevalling at the dates of the
transactions The exchange differences arising on translation for conseolidation are recognised in other comprehensive
income On disposal of a foreign operatien, the component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation 15 recogmised in profit or loss

{c) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recoghised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment 1s being made Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding discounts,
rebates, and taxes or duty The Group assesses its revenue arrangements agamnst specific critena in order to determine if it
15 acting as principal or agent The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised

Revenue from services

Revenues of the Group mainly consist of telecommunications traffic {premium rate telephone minutes and SMS messages)
that 1s generated from the end users/ subscribers Revenues are recognised at the time such services are provided to
subscribers or customers, based on the activity and the flow of premium rate telephone minutes and SMS messages
Where the Group acts as a principal supplier of mobile phone content, entertainment and other services, revenue 1s
recorded before the deduction of revenue share payments to network operators Where the Group acts as an intermediate
to network aperators for branded-mobile campaigns, media comparuses and any other third party, revenue is recorded net
of revenue share payments to network operators

Interest income

For all financtal iInstruments measured at amortised cost, interest income s recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR),
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter penod, where appropnate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liabihity
Iinterest income I1s included in finance iIncome in the iIncome statement

Rental income

Rental income ansing from operating leases on investment properties 1s accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and included in revenue due to its operating nature
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{d) Taxes

Current mcome tax

Current income tax assets and habilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxatton authonties The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that

are enacted or substantively enacted, by the reporting date, in the countries where the Group operates and generates
taxable income

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity 1s recogmsed in equity and not in the income statement
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which apphcable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided using the hability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of
assets and habilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes

Deferred tax liabilities are recogmised for all taxable temporary differences, except

s Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or hability in a transaction
that 15 not a business cornbination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
prefit or loss

s Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and 1t is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit wili be avallable against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except

s  Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference anses from the initial recognition of an
asset or hability in a transaction that 15 not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

s Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that the temporary differences

will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utiised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets i1s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 15 no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recogmised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and labiiities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset s

realised or the hability 1s settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss 1s recogmised outside proht or loss Deferred tax items are
recognised tn correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current income tax habilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the ¢ritena for separate recognition at that date,
are recognised subsequently If new information about facts and arcumstances change The adjustment 1s either treated as

a reduction to goodwll (as long as 1t does not exceed goodwill) if it was incurred durning the measurement period or
recognised in profit or loss
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Sales tax

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax, except

* When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services I1s not recoverable from the taxation authonity, in which
case the sales tax 15 recogmsed as part of the cost of acquisitton of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable

s When recevables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority 1s included as part of recevables or
payables in the statement of financial position

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, If
any Repair and mamntenance costs are recognised in the income statement as incurred Significant improvements are
capitalized to the cost of the related asset if such improvements increase the life of the asset, increase 1ts production
capacity or improve its efficiency

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised s derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal Any gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) 1s included in
the income statement when the asset 1s derecognised

The assets’ residual values, useful hives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financia! year end and adjusted
prospectively, If appropriate

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows

e Leasehold improvements Amortised on a straight-ine basis over the period of the lease
* Network and computer hardware 3- Syears
o Transportation assets 7 years
¢ Furniture and other equipment 5 years
{f) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement 1s, or contains, a lease 15 hased on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception date The arrangement s assessed for whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a

specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a nght to use the asset or assets, even If that right 1s not exphatly
specified in an arrangement

Group as a lessee

Finance leases that transfer substantially all the nisks and benefits mcidental to ownership of the leased item to the Group,
are capitahsed at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value
of the mimimum lease payments Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease
hability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability Finance charges are recognised
in finance costs in the iIncome statement

A leased asset 1s depreciated over the useful ife of the asset However, If there 15 no reasonable certainty that the Group
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of
the asset and the |ease term

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
lease term

(g) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset All other
borrowing costs are expensed n the period in which they occur Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds
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{h) Investment properties

Investment propertres are measured imtially at cost, including transaction costs Subsequent to mnitial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date Gawns or losses arising
from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
including the corresponding tax effect Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an
accredited external, independent valuer, applying a valuation mode! recommended by the International Valuation
Standards Committee

Investment properties are derecegnised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit 1s expected from their disposal The difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the iIncome statement in the period of derecognition

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there Is a change in use For a transfer from investment
property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting s the fair value at the date of change in
use If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property in accordance
with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use

{1} Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on imtial recognition at cost The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination 1s their far value at the date of acquisition Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses Internally generated intangible assets,

excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in profit and loss in the period 1n
which the expenditure is incurred

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
1s an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired The amortisation perod and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful hfe are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting penod Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropnate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives 1s recognised in the Income statement as the expense category
that i1s consistent with the function of the intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefimite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level The assessment of indefinite ife 1s reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite fe continues to be supportable If not, the change in useful Iife from indefinite to finite 1s made on a prospective
basis

Gains or losses ansing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement when the asset s derecognised

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an
intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate

* The technical feasibihity of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

Its intention to complete and its ability to use or seli the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The avallability of resources to complete the asset

The abibty to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recogmition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated imparment losses Amortisation of the asset begins when development 15 complete and the
asset 1s available for use It 1s amortised over the period of expected future benefit Amortisation 15 recorded In cost of
sales During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually
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Purchased and internally generated software

tntangible assets include both purchased and internally generated software and vanous licenses of minor value Intangible
assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost Internally generated software includes costs such as
payroll, matenials and services received and any other expenditure directly incurred in developing computer software and
applications in order to bring the software and applications into their intended use

Amortisation
Amortisation 15 calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful ife of the asset as follows

# Purchased software 3- 5 years

* Internally generated software 3- 5 years

# Customer relationships 15 years

* Non-compete agreement 1 year, commencing on the date of termination of |-POP’s Managing and

Advising sharehclders” appointment (refer to Note 7)

{)) Financial instruments

1} Financial assets

Imitial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of 1AS 39 are classified as financial assets at far value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-matunty investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives desighated as hedging

instruments In an effective hedge, as appropriate The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs, except i the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, 1 e, the date that the Group commuts
to purchase or sell the asset

The Group’'s financial assets include cash and short-term deposits, trade and other recewvables and loans and other
receivables

Subsequent measurement- Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment Amortised cost 15 calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The EIR amortisation 1s included in finance
income In the income statement The losses arising from impairment are recogmsed in the income statement in finance
costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for receivables

Derecognition

A financia! asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 1s

derecognised when

s The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

e The Group has transferred its nights to recewve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an cbligation to pay the
receved cash flows in full without matenal delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and either {a} the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has transferred 1ts rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered mnto a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates If and to what extent 1t has retained the risks and rewards of ownership When i1t has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
15 recogrised to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset In that case, the Group also recognises an

associated habiity The transferred asset and the assocated hability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
oblgations that the Group has retained
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it} Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 1s objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets 1s impaired A financial asset or a group of financial assets 1s deemed to be impaired if there 15 objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset {an incurred ‘loss
event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors 1s experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease 1n the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults

Financiol assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
Impairment loss s, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment

If there 15 objective ewidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the |oss 1s measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of esumated future cash flows {excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred) The present value of the estimated future cash flows 1s discounted
at the financial asset’s oniginal effective interest rate If a loan has a vanable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss 1s the current EIR

The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss i1s recogrised in profit or
loss Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and 1s accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss The interest income 1s recorded as
finance income 1n the income statement Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there 15 no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group If, in a
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment foss 1s increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account If a wnite-off 1s later recovered, the recovery 1s credited to finance costs in the iIncome statement

i) Financial habilities
Imitigl recogmition and measurement
Financial habilities within the scope of 1AS 39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans

and borrowings, or as denvatives designated as hedging instruments tn an effective hedge, as appropriate The Group
determines the classification of its financial habihties at initial recognition

All financial habilities are recogmised initially at fair value and, n the case of loans and horrowings, net of directly
attnbutable transaction costs

The Group's financial habihties include trade and other payables, bank overdrafts, loans and borrowings, and financial
guarantee contracts

Subsequent measurement- Loans and borrowings

After imhal recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR The EIR amortisation 1s included as finance costs in the income statement
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Derecognition

A financial hability 1s derecognised when the obligation under the liability i1s discharged or cancelled, or expires When an
existing financial habihty 1s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing habilty are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new lrability The difference in the respective carrying amounts 1s recognised in the income
statement

w} Offsetting of finanaial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the conselidated statement of financial
position if there 15 a currently enforceable legal nght to offset the recogrsed amounts and there 15 an intention to settle on
a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

v) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded In active markets at each reporting date i1s determined by reference
to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations {bid price for fong positions and ask price for short positions), without
any deduction for transaction costs

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value 15 determined using appropnate valuation
techniques Such techniques may include

& Using recent arm’s length market transactions

+ Reference to the current fair value of another instrument that 1s substanttally the same

e« A discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models

(k) Denvative financial instruments

Imtial recognition and subsequent measurement

Derwvative finanoial instruments are iitially recogrised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract 1s entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value 15 positive
and as finanoial habilittes when the fair value 1s negative

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of denvatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which 1s recognised in other comprehensive income The Group has no open position
in derivatives as of 31 December 2012 and 2011

{I} Impawrment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 15 an indication that an asset may be impaired If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset Is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount An
asset’s racoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's {CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its
value In use Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 1s considered impaired and 15 written down to its recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair
value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken into account If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model 15 used These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately
for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated These budgets and forecast calculations generally
cover a perniod of five years For longer periods, a long-term growth rate 1s calculated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the income statement in expense categories consistent with
the function of the impared asset, except for a property previcusly revalued when the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income In this case, the impairment 1s also recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of
any previous revaluation

35




iNnternetq
C] INTERNETQ PLC Annual Report 2012

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment 1s made at each reporting date to deterrmine whether there 1s an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased If such indication exists, the Group
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount A previously recognised impairment loss 1s reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recagnised The reversal i1s imited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recogmised for the asset in prior years Such reversal 1s recognised in the income statement unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase

The following assets have specific characteristics for impairment testing

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 December and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired Impairment is determined for goodwll by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs)
to which the goodwill relates When the recoverable amount of the CGU 15 less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss 15 recognised Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods

Intangible assets
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 December either indidually or at
the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired

{m} Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position compnise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a matunty of three months or less For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts excluding
restricted cash

{n} Share capital

Share capital represents the par value of the Company’s shares in 1ssue Any excess of the farr value of the consideration
received over the par value of the shares issued 15 recognised as the “share premium” in shareholders’ equity Incremental
external costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares are shown as a deduction from the proceeds in equity, net of
tax

(o} Dmdend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group’s shareholders 1s recognised as a hiability in the Company's financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the General Meeting of the Company’s Sharehclders

(p) Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 15
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a rehiable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement s recognised as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement 15 wirtually certain The expense relating to any provision 1s presented in the income statement net of
any reimbursement If the effect of the time value of money 1s matenal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, where appropriate, the nsks specific to the lhabity Where discounting 15 used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time 1s recognised as a finance cost

Contingent habilities are not recognized n the financial statements, but are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits 1s remote Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements, unless
the inflow of economic benefit 1s virtually certain, but are disciosed when an inflow of economic benefits i1s probable

(q) Employee benefits obligations

Staff retirement obligations are calculated at the present value of the future retirement benefits deemed to have accrued
at year-end, based on the employees earning retirement benefit rights steadily throughout the working period The reserve
for retirement obligations 15 calculated on the basis of financial and actuamal assumptions detalled in Note 25 and are
determined using the projected unit credit actuanal valuation method Net pension costs for the period are included in
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payroll in the accompanying statements of income and consist of the present value of benefits earned in the year, interest
cost on the benefit obhgation, pnor service cost, actuarial gains or losses and the cost of additional pension charges Past
service costs are recognised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits under the plan become
vested Actuanial gains or losses are recognised based on the cornidor approach over the average remaining service period
of active employees and included as a component of net pension cost for a year if, as of the beginning of the year it exceeds
10% of the projected benefit obligation The retirement benefit obligations are not funded

(r} Share-based payment transactions

Employees {including semor executives) and the non-executive members of the Group’s Board of Directors receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby they render services as consideration for equity
instruments {equity-settled transactions)

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions 15 recognised, together with a corresponding increase in other capital reserves in
equity, over the peried in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting penod has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest The
income statement expense or credit for a penod represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginming and end of that period and 1s recognised in employee benefits expense

No expense is recogmised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions for which, vesting 15
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition These are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition 15 satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied

When the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense recogrised i1s the expense as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met An additional expense 1s recogmised for any
modificatien that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise benefiaal to the
employee as measured at the date of modification

When an equity-settled award 1s cancelled, 1t 1s treated as if 1t vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award 1s recognised immediately This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the entity or the employee are not met However, iIf a new award 1s substituted for the cancelled award,
and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as If they
were a modification of the onginal award, as described 10 the previous paragraph The dilutive effect of outstanding options
15 reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earmings per share

4 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the following amended
IFRSs which have been adopted by the Group as of 1 January 2012 Therr adoption did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group or the company

¢ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures {Amended) - Enhanced Derecogrution Disclosure Requirements
¢ |AS 12 Income Taxes (Amended) — Deferred Taxes Recovery of Underlying Assets
¢ Improvements to IFRS (issued 2010) - which are applicable for periods ending after 1 October 2012

5 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent habilities, at the end of the reporting period However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a matenal adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets or liabilities
affected in future pertods

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following jJudgments, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
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Internally generated software

Development Costs relating to internally generated software are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy in
Note 3 ()) Initial capitalisation of costs 1s based on management’s judgment that technological and economic feasibility 1s
confirmed At 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of capitalised development costs was €3,741,173 (2011
€3,045,862)

Prowision for income taxes and unaudited tax years

Uncertainties exist with respect to certain interpretation of the tax regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable
income Given the wide range of international business relationshups and the long-term nature and complexity of existing
contractual agreements, differences ansing between the actual resuits and the assumptions made, or future changes to
such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax mcome and expense already recorded The Group
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the
respective countries in which 1t operates The amount of such provisions 1s based on various factors, such as experience of
previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority
Such differences of interpretation may anse on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailling in the
respective Group companies’ domicile As a result of the above the Group has established provisions for unaudited tax
years, the carrying amount of which as at 31 Decermber 2012 1s €125,000 (2011 €125,000)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be
avallable against which the losses can be utilised Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recogrised, based upon the likely timing and the tevel of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies

The deferred tax assets recognised on losses carried forward amounting to €324,519 (2011 €1,021,514) and refer to
certain affihates of the Company, for which sufficient taxable profits are anticipated 1n order for this asset to be recovered
If these affiliates do not generate future profits, the deferred income tax asset will have to be written off as income tax
expense

On the other hand, the Group has tax losses carned forward of €3,600,657 (2011 €1,445,668) for which no deferred tax
asset has been recognised due to the uncertainty of future taxable profits occurring gven the current facts and
arcumstances Further details are given in Note 11

Provision for Lihgation cases

The Group exercises Judgment in measuring and recognizing provisions and the exposures to contingent habilities related to
pending litigation or other outstanding claims Judgment Is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending claim will
succeed or a liability will anise, and to guantify the possible range of the financial settlement Because of the inherent
uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual losses may be different from the originally estimated provision

The Group has been imposed fines from Polish regulators amounting to €188,018 (2011 €188,018) Based upon legal
advice, the Group has recogrised a provision as of 31 December 2012 amounting to €51,830 (2011 €51,830} which equates
to 27% of the total claims The Group estimates that these cases will be settled more than twelve months after the
reporting date If the provision had been based on a 10% higher percentage of total claims (37%), the carrying amount of
the provision would had been increased by €18,880 with an equivalent decrease in profit and equity Further details are
given in Note 28

The Group has received a number of civil court claims regarding certain mobile marketing campaigns in Poland The total
amount of the claims against the Group 1s €168,000 (2011 €218,000} The Group has not recogrused any provision for the
year ended 31 December 2012 (2011 €14,300) based on legal advice If the Group had recognised a higher prowvision of
10% of total claims, the Group's profit and equity would have been decreased by €16,800 Further details are given in Note
28

An entity in the Group 1s a defendant in a legal action involving labor dispute with five prior employees of the Group for a
total amount of €180,000 {2011 €91,712} Based upon legal advice, the Group has recognised a provision as of 31
December 2012 amounting to €108,000 {2011 €55,027) which equates to 60% of total claims The Group estmates that
these cases will be settled within twelve months from the reporting date If the provision had been based on a 10% higher
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percentage of total claims (70%), the carrying amount of the provision would had been increased by €18,000 with an
equivalent decrease In profit and equity Further details are given in Note 28

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant nisk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habiliies within the next financial
year, are described below The Group based 1ts assumptions and estimates on parameters avallable when the consolhdated
financial statements were prepared Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances anising beyond the control of the Group Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur

impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management periodically reassesses the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful receivables in conjunction
with 1ts credit policy and taking into consideration reports from its legal adwvisors, which are prepared following the
processing of historical data and recent developments of the cases they are handling Moreover, the Group determines if
there 1s an objective evidence of impairment of receivable amounts by considering factors such as the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments

The carrying amount of the Group's trade and other receivables as at 31 December 2012 1s disclosed in Notes 18 and 19
Furthermore, the provision charged for the allowance of trade and other recevables as at 31 December 2012 amounted to
€122,437 (2011 €268,892) Group’s management assessed that apart from the amount prowvided in the consolidated
financial statements, no additional provision is required for past due receivables since they are not considered impaired

Valuation of investment property

The Group carres 1ts investment property at fair value, with changes in fair value being recogmsed in the income
statement The Group engages independent valuation specialists to determine fair value at each year end The fair value of
the investment property has been determined by weighting the two different approaches (sales comparison approach -
market approach (80%) and income capitalisation approach (20%)) If the market value and the income capitalisation rate
were 10% lower, the fair value of the property whould have been decreased by €50,473 with an equivalent decrease n
profit and equity The fair value of the investment property as at 31 December 2012 1s set out in the Note 14

Impairment of Goodwill

Deterrmining whether Goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated The value in use calculations requires management to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value

The Group performed an impairment test for Goodwill, anising from I-POP acquisition, at 31 December 2012 using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period  As a result of this test, the Company has not recognised
any impairment charge against goodwill If management’s estimated gross margins used in the value in use calculation at
31 December 2012 s lowered by 9%, the goodwill of €3 1 million would be fully impared Evenif management’s estimated
pre-tax discount rate applied to the discounted cash flows Is raised by a reasonable percentage (e g 3 percentage points)
the carrying amounts of goodwill would not be impaired

6. Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of 1ssuance of the financial statements are listed below This listing of
standards and interpretations 1ssued are those that the Group reasonably expects to have an 1impact on disclosures,
financial position or performance when applied at a future date The Group is in the process of assessing this impact and
intends to adopt these standards when they become effective

IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation (Amended) — Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendment 1s effective fer annual periods beginming on or after 1 July 2012 The amendments to IAS 1 change the
grouping of items presented in OCI Iterns that could be reclassified {or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time
{for example, net gan on hedge of net investment, exchange differences on translation of foreign operations, net
movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-for-sale finanaial assets) would be presented separately
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from rtems that will never be reclassified {for example, actuanal gains and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation
performance

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Revised)

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 The IASB has 1ssued numerous
amendments to IAS 19 These range from fundamental changes such as removing the corridor mechanism and the concept
of expected returns on plan assets to simple clanfications and re-wording This amendment 1s expected to impact the
Group’s net benefit expense as the expected return on plan assets will be calculated using the same tnterest rate as applied
for the purpose of discounting the benefit obligation

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Revised)

The Standard 1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Januvary 2014 As a consequence of the new IFRS 11
Joint arrangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, 1AS 28 Investments in Associates, has been
renamed IAS 28 investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity method to
investments In Joint ventures In addition to associates This amendment 1s not expected to impact the Group's financial
position or performance

IAS 32 Financial instruments Presentation {Amended) - Offsetting Financia! Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendment 1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 These amendments clanfy the
meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable nght to set-off” The amendments also clanfy the application of the 1AS 32
offsetting cnteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settiement mechanisms
that are not simultaneous The Group Is In the process of assessing the impact of this amendment, and intends to adopt the
standard when it becomes effective

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures (Amended) - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendment i1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2013 These amendments require an entity
to disclose information about rights to set-off and related arrangements (e g cellateral agreements) The disclosures would
provide users with information that is useful 1n evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial
position The new disclosures are required for all recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance with 1AS 32
Financial Instruments Presentation The disclosures also apply to recognized financial instruments that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with
IAS 32

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments- Classification and Measurement

The new standard 1s effective for annual perniods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 IFRS 9, as 1ssued, reflects the first
phase of the IASBs work on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities as defined in 1AS 39 The standard was initially effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, but amendments to IFRS 8 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures, 1ssued in December
2011, moved the mandatory effective date to 1 January 2015 In subsequent phases, the IASB will address hedge
accounting and impairment of financial assets The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the
classification and measurement of financial assets, but will not have an impact on classification and measurements of
financial habibties The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when the final standard
including all phases 1s 1ssued This standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU

IFRS 10 Conscohidated Financial Statements, |AS 27 Separate Financial StatementsThe new standard 15 effective for annual
penods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated financial statements It also addresses the 1ssues raised in SIC-12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities

IERS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special purpose entities The changes
introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exerase significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled
and therefore are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were In |AS 27 Based on
the preliminary analyses performed, IFRS 10 1s not expected to have any impact on the currently held investments of the
Group

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The new standard s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 |FRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interests in
Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jaintly-controlled Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers IFRS 11 removes the
option to account for jointly controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate consolidation Instead, JCEs that meet the
definrtion of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method The new standard is not expected to have any
impact on the Group's financial position
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IFRS 12 Disciosures of Interests in Other Entities

The new standard s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 IFRS 12 includes ail of the disclosures
that were previously in IAS 27 related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all of the disclosures that were
previously included in IAS 31 and IAS 28 These disclosures relate to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and structured entities A number of new disclosures are also required but has no impact in the Group’s financral
position or performance

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The new standard 1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 IFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements IFRS 13 does not change when an entity 1s required to use fair value,
but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under IFRS when fair value 1s required or permitted The Group
ts currently assessing the impact that this standard will have on the financial position and performance, but based on the
prehbminary analysis, no matenal impact 1s expected

The IASB has 1ssued the Annual Improvements to IFRSs — 2009 — 2011 Cycle, which contains amendments to its standards
and the related Basis for Conclusions The annual improvements project provides a mechamism for making necessary, but
non-urgent, amendments to [FRS The effective date for the amendments 1s for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013 This project has not yet been endorsed by the EU These improvements will not have an impact on the Group
but mainly include

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. This improvement clanfies the difference between voluntary additional
comparative information and the mimimum required comparative information Generally, the minimum required
comparative peried is the previous period

1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. This improvement clarifies that major spare parts and servicing eguipment that
meet the defimtion of property, plant and equipment are not inventory

1AS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation. This improvement clarifies that income taxes ansing from distributions to
equity holders are accounted for in accordance with I1AS 12 Income Taxes

1AS 34 interim Financial Reporting. The amendment aligns the disclosure requirements for total segment assets with total
segment habilities in interim financial statements This clarification also ensures that intenm disclosures are aligned with
annual disclosures

Transition Guidance (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and {FRS 12)

The guidance 1s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities The
amendments change the transition guidance to provide further relief from full retrospective application The date of initial
application’ in IFRS 10 is defined as ‘the beginning of the annual reporting period in which IFRS 10 1s applied for the first
time’ The assessment of whether control exists 15 made at “the date of imtial application’ rather than at the beginning of
the comparative period If the contro! assessment is different between IFRS 10 and IAS 27/SIC-12, retrospective
adjustments should be determined However, If the control assessment 1s the same, no retrospective application 1s
required |f more than one comparative peniod 1s presented, additional rebef 1s given to require only one period to be
restated For the same reasons IASB has also amended IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities to provide transition rehief This guidance has not yet been endorsed by the EU

Investment Entities {Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)

The amendment 1s effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 The amendment applies to a
particular class of business that qualifies as investment entities The JASB uses the term ‘investment entity’ to refer to an
entity whose business purpose 1s to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income or both
An investment entity must alse evaluate the performance of its investments on a fair value basis Such entities could
include private equity organisations, venture capital organisations, pension funds, soveregn wealth funds and other
investment funds Under {FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, reporting entities were required to consolidate all
nvestees that they control {1 e all subsidiaries) The Investment Entities amendment provides an exception to the
cansolidation requirements in IFRS 10 and requires investment entities to measure particular subsidianes at fair value
through profit or ioss, rather than consalidate them The amendment also sets out disclosure requirements for investment
entities This amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU
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7. Business comhbinations

On 1 July 2011, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of the voting nghts of I-POP Networks Pte Ltd (“I-POP”), a
Singapore based mobile and media services company, funded entirely by the issue of 914,865 shares in INTERNETQ PLC

I-POP was founded in 2001 and operates directly or through subsidiaries in Singapore, Indonesia, Thailand, Vietnam, and
the Philippines |-POP’s technelogy and data processing centers are located in Singapore and Vietnam

I-POP provides direct connectivity, mabile marketing, as well as media solutions to a wide range of clients ranging from
mobtle network operators, FMCG (fast moving consumer goods) companies, advertising and creative agencies, as well as
traditional media companies |-POP 1s connected with 6% mobile network operators in Southeast Asia (32 direct and 37
through aggregators), covering more than 500 mithon subscribers in 19 countnes

The key strategic benefits of the acquisition include
* Accelerates the geographical expansion of the Group to South-East Asia,
+ Increase the number of the connectivity agreements of the Group with mobile network operators,
¢ Allows the Group to address its mobile marketing products and services to a wider customer base, and
s  Enables the immediate roll-out of AKAZOO 1n the South-east Asia region

Assets acquired and hhabiities assumed
The fair value of the identifiable assets and habilities of I-POP Networks Pte Ltd as at the date of acquisition were

Fair value
recognised on the
acquisition
Assets

Property plant and equipment 69,601
Intangible assets 1,547,361
Non current assets 24,700
Deferred tax assets 515,673
Trade recevables 491,229
Cther recevables 392,496
Cash and cash equivalents 399,163
Restricted cash 7,373
Total Assets 3,447,596

Liabilities
Other non current habilities 300
Deferred tax habilities 163,233
Trade Payables 204,498
Accrued and other Liabilities 2,096,887
Total Liabilities 2,464,918
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 982,678
Goodwll ansing on acquisition 3,097,051
Purchase consideration transferred 4,079,729

The fair value of the property plant and equipment amounts to €69,601 and relate mainly to computer servers

The fair value of the intangible assets amounting to €1,547,361, consist of IT platform software of €749,092, customers’
relationships {connectivity agreements with mobile operators) of €595,083 and non-compete agreements with former
shareholders of €203,186 {the managing and advising shareholders cannot be engaged in a business similar to the
Company’s operations for one year after the termination of their services) As a result of the intangible assets identified on
acquisition, a deferred tax hability amounting to €163,233 has been recognised
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A deferred tax asset amounting to €515,673 was recogrised in respect of the tax losses carried forward as at the acquisition
date At the reporting date the Group has utilised €475,796 and still anticipates sufficient future taxable profits to enable
this asset to be fully recovered

The fair value of the trade receivables amounting to €491,229 consisted mainly of trade accounts with mobile service
providers and aggregators of mobile service providers At the reporting date these trade receivables have been recewved
The contractual amounts of trade receivables amounted to € 666,518

The fair value of trade payables amounting to €204,498 consisted mainly of accounts payable to content providers and to
aggregators of mobile service providers

Accrued and other habihties amounting to €2,096,887 includes accrued expenses of €1,500,000 and a loan faclity of
€514,000 which was granted from INTERNETQ PLC prior to the acquisition date

The goodwill amounted to €3,097,051 comprises the value of the expected synergies ansing from the acquisition The
goodwill arises mainly from the benefits that the Group 1s expecting from the roll out of AKAZOO in the area of South-East
Asia and therefore a portion 15 allocated to this segment A portion of goodwill 1s further allocated to the Mobile Marketing
Sector where the Group estimates that a number of campaigns are going to be conducted in cooperation with {-POP
Networks Pte Ltd Up until 31 December 2012 the Group has launched Akazoo in 4 countries In the region of South East
Asia, while it has conducted numerous mobile marketing campaigns The goodwill recognised 15 not expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes

The Group performed an imparment test for Goodwill at 31 December 2012 using cash flow projecttons based on finanaial
budgets covering a five-year period The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections 1s 13 08% and average gross
profit margin applied 1s 22% Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a 4% growth rate (consistent
with the average growth rate of the industry) As a result of this test, the Company has not recognised any impairment
charge against goodwill

At the reporting date, no contingent habiities have been dentified as existing as at the acquisihon date

Since the date of acquisition and until 31 December 2012, I-POP has contrnbuted €12,711,245 of revenue and a €1,295,506
profit after tax to the Group If the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of 2011 year and not on 1 July 2011, the
revenue contribution to the Group would have been €14,501,246 and the negative contribution to the profit before tax of

the Group would have been €111,276

The following table summarises the consideration transferred for I-POP Networks PTE LTD at the acquisition date

Farr value
recogmsed on the
acquisition
Purchase Consideration

Shares issued at fair value 2,956,936
Contingent consideration as component of equity (shares to be 1ssued) 1,122,793
Total constderation 4,079,729

Analysis of cash flow on acquisition
Transaction costs at the acquisition (Included in cash flows from operating actwities) {499,774}
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary (included in cash flows from investment activities) 399,163
Net cash flow on acquisition {100,611)
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The Group 1ssued 914,865 of its ordinary shares as consideration for the 100% interest in 1-POP Networks Pte Ltd The farr
value of the shares is the market price of the shares of the Group at the acquisition date, which was €3 23 each {rounded to
the second decimal digit due to translation from UK pound) The fair value of the consideration given 1s therefore
€2,956,936

Transaction costs of €499,774 were expensed in the year ended 31 December 2011, and were included in the
administrative expenses

Contingent consideration
As part of the purchase agreement, the former shareho!ders are entitled to a number of shares (up to 1,162,177

corresponding to €3,756,273) conditional on the achievement of certain performance conditions In the fiscal years 2011,
2012 and 2013 The performance conditions relate to a) minimum revenues, b) minimum profit after tax, ¢) maximum
operating expenses, d) maximum funding requirements to execute the yearly business plan, ) mimimum number of
campaigns conducted and f) minimum number of mobile subscribers base and countries of operation

Since the performance conditions are independent of one another {and not cumulative) and since a specific number of
shares correspond to each performance condition (not a variable number depending on performance conditions) the Group
treated the contingent consideration as a component of equity The final assessment of the contingent consideration
recognised in the 31 December 2012 financial statements was determined to be €1,122,793 (347,388 shares at a value of
€3 23 each, rounded to the second decamal digit due to translation from UK pound) (2011 €936,057) corresponding to an
increase of €186,736 and resulting th an equivalent increase In Goodwill and equity (in the account “other components of
equity” in the accompanying statement of financial position)

After the approval of 2011 financial statements the Group made a proposal to the prior CEO and prior shareholder of I-POP
to resign offering im most of the consideration shares The respective settlement agreement between INTERNETQ and the
prior CEQ of the company provided that the prior CEO will be awarded a total number of 400,000 INTERNETQs shares to
be issued in 4 equal installments of 100,000 shares each The amount of 400,000 shares was deemed reasonable given the
fact that the prior CEQ owned 30 2% of I-POP prior to the acquisition

From the total of 400,000 shares awarded to the prior CEO, 130,657 of the issued shares relate to the outstanding
contingent consideration from the acquisition of [-POP resulting in a decrease of €422,296 in the equity account “other
components of equity” and an eguivalent increase in share capital and share premium The remaining 269,343 shares were
recorded as compensation for the termination of his services and therefore charged in the 31 December 2012 income
statement {Note 9, Acquisition costs / share based payments and are included in administrative expenses) corresponding to
a decrease of €744,267 n the profits and equity From the remaining 269,343 shares 69,343 were issued in 2012
corresponding to an increase in share capital and share premium amounting to €191,614, while 200,000 shares will be
issued in 2013 The value of the 200,000 shares to be 1ssued in 2013 amounted to € 552,653 have been recorded in the
account “other components of equity”

The Company also provided to the prior shareholder and CEC of I-POP as well as to the adwvising shareholder of 1-POP, as
part of therr termination package and according to the non-compete clause of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the total
number of 52,493 shares (out of which 20,000 were granted from the 2012 share incentive plan) amounting to € 151,251
As these shares did not relate to the contingent consideration, it was charged in the 31 December 2012 income statement
{(Note 9, Acquisition costs / share based payments and are included in administrative expenses) corresponding to a
decrease of €151,251 tn the profits and equity

On 25 September 2012, 88,761 ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each we i1ssued at a price of £2 92 resulting in an increase of
€286,885 in share capital and share premium and an equivalent decrease in the account “other components of equity
These shares were i1ssued to the prior managing shareholders of I-POP Networks PTE LTD in respect of their contingent
consideration and after achieving the performance conditions for the fiscal year 2011, under the terms of the sell and
purchase agreement of I-POP Networks PTE LTD
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8 Segment Information

For management purposes the Group 1s organised into business units based on 1ts services Consequently, the Group has

five reportable operating segments as follows

¢ The Mobile Marketing operating segment Specially designed for campaigns on mobile telecommunications
networks

* The AKAZOO operating segment Services offering access to digital content {music, games, subscriptions) from the
Group’s platform AKAZQO

e The Legacy operating segment Media Services involving audience through compelling promotions, programs and live
shows that draw attention to content

* The Aggregation Services operating segment Services that enable customers’ billing directly via the users’ mobite
phone

* Investment Properties: Rental income from operating leases

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments

In 2011 the Group has deaded to split the previously reported Mobile Entertainment segment into two separate segments
and report AKAZOO segment separately from the Legacy segment The sigmificant increase of AKAZOO business during
2011, in connection with the intentions of the management and the future trends in the specific segment, resulted in
management assessing AKAZOO and 1ts operating results separately for the purpose of decision making At the same time
the declining Legacy business {mainly Greek based) was the reason for management deading to monitor the specific
business as a separate segment

The Group, In 2011 after the acquisition of I-POP in South East Asia, decided to report the aggregation services as a
separate segment The Group through this segment provides a unique, yet proven, combination of technology, software
and creative services that enables the rapid development, distribution and billing for digital content, media licensing and
marketing services These services can be more easily summarized as Billing/Aggregation (that enables 1-POP’s partners to
bili for services directly via a users’ mobile phone), media content and format exploitation (for integrated brand marketing
campaigns and TV shows), and enterprise solutions, that make the most out of today's mobile media revolution for
corporate chents

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment Segment performance 15 evaluated based on operating profit or loss
{minus any costs that are not allocated to segments)

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third
parties Segment income, expenses and results will include those transfers between business segments which eliminated
on consolidation

The following table represents revenue and profit information regarding the Group’s operating segments for the year
ended 31 12 2012

Adjustments

Mobile Aggregation  Investment and
2012 Marketing Akazoo Legacy Services Properties eliminations Consolidated
Revenue
External customer 57,487,351 11,439,473 1,167,300 3,322,980 - - 73,417,104
Related parties {note 27) - - - - 14,400 - 14,400
Inter-segment 4,467,941 3,268,290 - - - (7,736,231} -
Total revenue 61,955,292 14,707,763 1,167,300 3,322,980 14,400 (7,736,231} 73,431,504
Segment profit /{loss) 9,866,221 (941,174) (213,701) {654,982) {33,806} - 8,022,558
Segment profit / {loss) includes the following
Depreciation and amartisation {1,835,884)  (1,388,575) {122,970) (102,510) - {3,449,939)
Operating Assets 70,776,773 24,277,982 2,313,428 3,305,441 506,421 {38,665,327) 62,514,718
Operating Liabilities 37,063,696 10,953,789 1,032,253 2,407,711 25,025 (38,665,327} 12,817,147
Other disclosures
Capital expenditure 8,558,138 1,487,127 42,830 74,601 - {2,266,771) 7,895,925
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1 Inter-segment revenues are eliminated on consolidation

2 Segment profit / (loss) does not include acquisttion costs (€895,518), finance come (€361,065), finance costs (€586,818) and income tax expense
(€899,587) as these tens are managed on a group basis

3 Segment assets do not include deferred tax asset (€452,121), as this asset I1s managed on a group basis

4 Segment habilities do not include interest bearing loans and borrowings {€2,222,409), deferred tax habilittes (€173,467) and current income tax payable
(€ 673,677}, as these hatilities are managed on a group basis

S Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Revenues from three clients (partners with which the Group conducts campaigns in the regions of Middle East, Africa and
Russia) which amounted to €49,331,188 (86% of total Mobile Marketing revenues) are ncluded within the mobile
marketing segment, revenues from five chents which amounted to €7,640,6%7 {67% of total Akazoo revenues) are included
within the AKAZOO segment, revenues from three clients which amounted to €1,080,122 (93% of total Legacy revenues)
are included within the Legacy segment, while revenues from two chents which amounted to € 2,159,459 (65% of total
Aggregation revenues) are included in the aggregation services segment

The following table represents revenue and profit information regarding the Group’s operating segments for the year
ended 31 12 2011

Adjustments

Mobile Aggregation  Investment and
2011 Marketing Akazoo Legacy Services Properties elimmations  Consolidated
Revenue
External customers 41,173,467 6,005,800 1,240,731 1,645,743 - - 50,065,741
Related parties (note 27) - - - - 10,800 - 10,800
Inter-segment 4,444,132 2,093,873 - - - (6,538,005) -
Total revenue 45,617,599 8,099,673 1,240,731 1,645,743 10,800 {6,538,005) 50,076,541
Segment Operating profit /{loss) 6,163,158  (1,350,382) (370,689) (345,239) (81,394) - 4,015,454
Segment profit / {loss) includes the following
Depreciation and amortisation (790,026)  {1,384,047) (99,260) (169,326) - (2,442,659)
Operating Assets 51,851,359 12,776,892 1,996,313 4,064,678 537,584 (21,985,465) 49,241,361
QOperating Liabiities 28,018,426 6,343,725 1,297,457 1,647,673 20,152 (21,985,465) 15,341,968
Other disclosures
Capital expenditure 3,107,564 4,898,744 141,315 157,033 - {2,809,168) 5,495,488

1 Inter-segment revenues are eimenated on consolidation

2 Segment operating profit does not include finance mcome (€288,023), finance costs (€1,042,659) and income tax expense (£€840,093} as these items are
maraged on a group basts

3 Segment assets do not Include deferred tax asset {€924,184}, as this asset 1s managed on a group basis

4 Segment labthties do not include deferred tax liabiities [€153,920), interest beaning loans and borrowings (€2,366,599) and current income tax payable
{€ 860,957], as these liabiliies are managed on a group basts

5 Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Revenues from four clients which amounted to €30,112,370 (73% of total Mobile Marketing revenues) are included within
the mobile marketing segment, revenues from three clients which amounted to €4,060,561 (68% of total Akazoo revenues)
are included within the AKAZOO segment, while revenues from three clients which amounted to €1,001,038 {81% of total
Legacy revenues) are included within the Legacy segment

Geographic information

Revenues from external customers 2012 2011
turope (including CIS) 30,143,654 30,788,226
Latin Amenca 22,552 17,391
Middle East {including Turkey) 5,116,157 3,552,775
Africa 11,278,400 7,030,604
Asia 26,870,741 8,687,545
Total Revenues 73,431,504 50,076,541
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The Company being only the holding company of the Group has no operations in the country of domicile Revenues in
Eurcpe include mainly revenues in Russia, Poland and Greece corresponding to approx 21% (2011 22%), 9% (2011 22%)
and 4% (2011 7%) of the Group’s revenues respectively In addition, revenues in Turkey amount to 3% of the Group's

revenues {2011 6%)

Non-current assets

2012 2011
Europe {Including CIS) 15,446,648 8,170,545
Latin America - 344
Middle East {including Turkey) 4,215 -
Africa - -
Asia* 4,334,774 4,449,315
Total non-current assets 19,785,637 12,620,204

Non-current assets include property, plant, and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets, investment properties,

non-current financial assets and other non-current assets

9 Analysis of expenses

Expenses (cost of sales, sefling and distribution and administrative) in the accompanying income statements are analysed as

follows
Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Advertising and promotion costs 25,775,185 13,846,680 27,791 -
Cost of services {including license fees)* 27,202,711 20,625,149 - -
Payroll and related costs 4,167,939 3,452,484 145,028 69,582
Share option plans 757,515 394,369 757,515 394,369
Acquisition costs / share based payments {note 7) 895,518 - 895,518
Depreciation and amortisation 3,449,939 2,442,659 - -
Third party fees and services 3,578,409 4,031,919 321,752 406,576
Operating lease payments 688,672 501,321 - -
Travelling expenses 380,762 598,350 45,156 21,742
Allowance of doubtful accounts 122,438 268,892 - -
Valuation of investment properties at fair value 29,300 72,000 - -
Other expenses 1,181,346 1,311,493 88,872 39,856
Less amounts capitahised {1,750,997) (1,219,106) - -
Total expenses 66,478,737 46,326,210 2,285,632 932,125

*In 2011 financial statements license fees were presented separately, while in 2012 financial statements they have been included within

cost of services

The above expenseas are categorised in the accompanying income statements as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Cost of safes 35,187,748 26,603,228 - -
Selling and distribution 26,511,544 15,780,609 135,129 120,386
Administrative expenses 4,779,444 3,942,373 2,150,503 811,735
Total expenses 66,478,737 46,326,210 2,285,632 932,125
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The depreciation and amortisation 1s categorised in the accompanying income statements as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Cost of sales 3,310,827 2,344,164 -
Selling and distribution 25,045 17,733 -
Administrative expenses 114,067 80,763 -
Total expenses 3,449,939 2,442,659 - -

Payrall and related costs in the accompanying income statements are analysed as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Wages and salaries 3,459,217 2,870,257 125,228 57,027
Social security costs 565,193 455,117 23,800 12,555
Staff retirement indemnities 95,664 49,181 - -
Other staff costs 47,865 77,929 - -
Total 4,167,939 3,452,484 149,028 69,582
Less Amounts capitalised (746,497) {706,580} -
Total 3,421,042 2,745,904 149,028 69,582

The Group’s number of employees as at 31 December 2012 amounted to 91 {2011 137) The number of employees were
made up as follows

Group
2012 2011
Administration 30 40
International Operations 30 53
Akazoo 16 19
Software development 15 25
Total 91 137

The remuneration of the auditors included in the “Third parties fees and services” for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011 1s analysed as follows

Group
2012 2011
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 72,868 76,289
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services
The audit of the company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 107,689 110,079
Tax comphance services 43,910 65,500
Total 224,467 251,868

Tax compliance services for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 relate to review of transfer pricing documentation
and tax certificate work following the recent statutory requirement in Greece
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Finance income/ (costs) in the accompanying financial statements are analysed as follows
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Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Interest on short term borrowings {(Note 22) {116,708} {142,063) - -
Interest on long term borrowings (Note 22} {47,270) (49,712) - -
Exchange differences {196,424) (614,373) (255,377) {396,419)
Other finance costs {226,416) {236,511) (41,064) {89,898)
Total finance costs (586,818) (1,042,659) {296,441) (486,317)
Interest earned 181,625 96,330 309,479 114,369
Dervatives valuation - 6,328 -
Exchange differences 179,169 181,077 - -
Other finance income 271 4,288 - -
Total finance income 361,065 288,023 309,479 114,369
Total finance income/ {costs) net {225,753) {754,636) 13,038 (371,948)
11 Income tax
The amounts of income taxes which are reflected in the accompanying income statements are analysed as follows
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

Current income taxes
Deferred tax

407,978 1,047,904
491,609  (207,805)

Total charge for Income taxes

899,587 840,099

The reconcihation of income taxes reflected in the income statements and the amount of income taxes determined by the
application of the Company’s statutory tax rate to pretax income 1s summarized as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Profit/{loss) before income taxes 6,901,287 3,260,818 -2,272594  -1,304,073
Income tax calculated at the nominal applicable rate (24 5%)
(2011 265 %) 1,690,815 864,117 (556,785) {345,579}
Effect of iIncome/loss subject to different tax rates (969,769) {493,030) - -
Reversing/originating temporary differences 93,136 185,035 - -
Tax effect on non-tax deductible expenses and non-tax
deductible income (216,642) (83,746) 362,592 -
Tax effect on tax losses for which no deferred tax was
recognized 342,562 364,234 194,193 345,579
Accruals for unaudited tax year - 63,149 - -
Other {40,515} {59,660} - -
Total charge for incorne taxes 895,587 840,099 - -
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Current income tax

The Company i1s obliged to file its tax returns in accordance with the applicable tax law in England and Wales No income
tax 15 payable by the Company on the net income deriving from subsidiaries with foreign operations The Group's
subsidiaries file their tax returns in the countries in which they are established and/or operate

The tax rates at 31 December 2012 of the countries where the most significant operations of the Group are located are the
following

s Greece 20% (2011 20%)

¢ Poland 19% (2011 19%}

Cyprus 10% (2011 10%)

Turkey 20% (2011 20%)

*  Singapore 17% (2011 17%)

The Greek nominal tax rate for the year 2012 1s 20% The above mentioned tax refers only to the non-distnbuted profits te
shareholders The profits distributed, are taxed at 40% irrespective of being paid in cash or in shares The above provisions
as regards the distnibution of profits are applicable for profits derving from balance sheets dated as of 31 December 2010
and onwards

The tax returns are submitted annually, however, they remain prowvisional until such time as the tax authornties exarmine the
books and records of the respective branches and subsidiartes In a future tax examination of the tax unaudited years,
additional tax and penalties may be assessed by the tax authonties For the unaudited years it 1s not possible to determine
with accuracy any additional tax and penalties that may be assessed, as these will depend on the findings of the tax
authorities

As of 31 December 2012, the Greek and Cypriot subsidiaries have been audited by the tax authorities up to 31 December
2009 and 2002 respectively, while for the rest of the subsidiaries no tax audit has been performed {(due to the recent dates
of incorporation)

The Group establishes income tax accruals to cover the potential tax assessments based on previous years' tax audits and
the development of the related amounts Such accruals are re-assessed at each year-end considering any possible late
development and are deemed adequate to cover the potential tax assessments

All earnings 1n foreign jurisdictions are permanently renvested as the earnings are needed for working capital needs and
capital mprovements Hence, no deferred tax hability has been recognised

Deferred tax
The movement of the deferred tax assets and habilities, net is as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Opening batlance 770,264 210,018 - -
Charge for the year (491,610) 560,246 - -
Closing balance 278,654 770,264 - -

50




Internetq’
INTERNETQ PLC

Annual Report 2012

The detailed movement in deferred tax assets and habilities of the Group duning the year ended 31 December 2012 and

2011 15 as follows

1 January (Debit)/credit [Debit)/credit 31
2012 to statement to equity December
of income 2012
Deferred tax assets
Revenue not recognised
Accrued expenses 203,687 (98,416) - 105,271
Tax losses carned forward 1,021,514 {696,995} - 324,519
Provision for staff retirement indemnities 5,534 759 - 6,293
Provision for doubtful receivables 360,807 9,231 - 370,038
Total 1,591,542 (785,421} - 806,121
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred costs (84,952} 57,647 - {27,305}
Accrued income {341,829) 295,489 - {46,340}
Reversal of debit exchange differences {4} 4 - -
Capitahsation of internally generated software (232,407) (87,295) - (319,702)
Intangible assets recognised from acquisition {157,343} 23,303 - {134,040}
Other (4,743) 4,663 - {80}
Total (821,278) 293,811 - (527,467)
Deferred tax asset/{liability) net 770,264 {491,610) - 278,654
Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows
Deferred tax assets 924,184 452,121
Deferred tax habilities {153,920} (173,467)
Deferred tax 770,264 278,654
1 January (Debit)/credit Business 31
2011 to statement Combmnattons December
of income 2011
Deferred tax assets
Revenue not recognised 328,119 (328,119) - -
Accrued expenses 69,896 133,791 - 203,687
Tax losses carned forward 11,799 494,042 515,673 1,021,514
Prowision for staff retirement indemnities 3,301 2,233 - 5,534
Prowvision for doubtful receivables 133,283 227,524 - 360,807
Total 546,398 529,471 515,673 1,591,542
Deferred tax habilities
Deferred costs (63,220} {21,732) - {84,952)
Accrued income - {341,829) - (341,829)
Reversal of debit exchange differences (8,313) 8,309 - {4)
Capitalisation of internally generated software {260,104) 27,697 - (232,407)
Intangible assets recognised from acquisition - 5,890 (163,233)  (157,343)
Other {4,743) - - (4,743)
Total {336,380} (321,665) {163,233)  (821,278)
Deferred tax asset/({habulity) net 210,018 207,806 352,440 770,264
Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows
Deferred tax assets 387,216 924,184
Deferred tax habilities {177,198) {153,920}
Deferred tax 210,018 770,264
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The deferred tax assets recognised over tax losses carred forward, refer to two companies of the Group for which sufficient
taxable profits are anticipated in order for these assets to be recovered On the other hand, the Company and the Group
have tax losses of €1,760,523 {2011 €1,304,073) and approx €3,600,658 {2011 €1,445,668) respectively, however, no
deferred tax 1s recogmised due to the uncertainty of future taxable profits occurring gven the current facts and
circumstances

12, Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

Diluted earmings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number

of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations

Group

2012 2011
6,001,700 2,420,719

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent from continuous operations
Weghted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 32,648,605 28,555,202
Earnings per share basic 018 Q08
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earmings per share 32,648,605 28,559,202

Effect on dilution

Deferred consideration shares {Note 7) 62,826 173,694
Acquisition costs / share based payments (Note 7) 50,556 -
Share incentive plan (Note 26) 290,889 -
404,271 173,694
Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 33,052,876 28,732,896
Earmings per share diluted 018 008
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Property, plant and equipment of the Group are analysed as follows
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Network
Furniture equipment
Leasehold and other Transportation and computer
improvements  equipment means hardware Total
Cost
At 1 January 2011 367,889 938,071 108,255 1,838,712 3,252,927
Additions 149,560 209,001 10,000 1,143,839 1,512,400
Additions from Acquisitions* - 24,146 - 45,455 69,601
sales/ write offs - {148,126) - {30,558) (178,685)
At 31 December 2011 517,449 1,023,092 118,255 2,997,447 4,656,243
Additions 97,812 100,048 - 712,178 910,038
Sales/ write offs - (44,290) - {631,115) {675,405)
At 31 December 2012 615,261 1,078,850 118,255 3,078,510 4,890,876
Depreciation
At 1 January 2011 {71,792) {682,834) (16,547) (1,563,031) (2,334,204)
Depreciation expense {47,845) {96,761) (16,971} (254,562) {416,139)
Sales/ write offs - 144,052 - 17,806 161,858
At 31 December 2011 {119,637) (635,543} {33,518) (1,799,787} (2,588,485)
Depreciation expense {56,222) {140,235} {17,738) {524,270} {738,465)
Sales/ wnite offs - 5,726 - 616,011 621,737
At 31 December 2012 {175,859) {770,052} {51,256) {1,708,046) (2,705,213)
Net book value at 1 January 2011 296,097 255,237 91,708 275,681 918,723
Net book value at 31 December 2011 397,812 387,549 84,737 1,197,660 2,067,758
Net book value at 31 December 2012 439,402 308,798 66,999 1,370,464 2,185,663

*These additions relate to the acquisition of I-POP Networks Pte Ltd, for further details please refer to note 7 The accumulated depreciation of these
assets was eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the assets

There 1s no property, plant and equipment that have been pledged as security against loans and borrowings

14. Investment Property

The movement of Investment property I1s analysed as follows

Group
2012 2011
Opening balance 535,000 &07,000
Valuation of investment property (29,300} {72,000)
Closing balance 505,700 535,000

The investment property Is stated at fair value, which has been determined based on valuations performed by American
Appraisal {Hellas) bmited an accredited independent valuer, as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, The fair value
represents the amount at which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing buyer and a
knowledgeable, willing seller 1n an arm'’s length transaction at the date of valuation, in accordance with International
Valuation Standards The fair value of the investment property has been determined by weighting the two different
approaches (sales companison approach — market approach and income capitalisation approach} The Market approach 1s
considered to be as the most rehable indication of value and assumes that an informed buyer would not pay for an
acquisition of property, more than the cost of buying a sirmilar one for the same use and purpose The income capitalisation
approach 1s based on the capitahsation of revenues that the property generates or can generate according to Its current

use
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On October 2006 the investment property was held as collateral of short term interest beaning loan and borrowing for the
amount of €1,000,000

The investment property I1s currently being rented to the Company’'s CFO (Note 26) For the net profit anising for the
investment property refer to note 8

15. Investment in Substdiaries
The Company’s investment in subsidiaries relates to InternetQ) Telecommunication and internet services S A, {Greece) and
to InternetQ Southeast Asia PTE LTD The movement of the investment 1s analysed as follows

2012 2011
Openming balance 5,865,272 1,624,192
Additions (Note 7) 186,737 3,892,993
Exchange differences 157,393 348,087
Closing balance 6,209,402 5,865,272

The investments in subsidiaries are presented at cost less impairment «f any

InternetQ Telecommunication and internet services § A and InternetQ Southeast Asia PTE LTD are the parent entities of the
indirectly held subsicharies of the Group The Company's directly and indirectly wholly owned subsidiaries as at 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011 are listed below

InternetQ Telecommunication and internet services S A, was incorporated in Greece, in March 2000, and its principal

activibies, in accordance with Article 3 of its Articles of Incorporation, are to be engaged in businesses of trading and

developing software and related products, services used in wireless communication and telecommunication Additional

activities related to

¢ Export and import technical equipment and software required for the set-up, maintenance, reparr, technical service,
support and assistance activities for the purposes mentioned

e Consulting relating to such software and products mentioned above, and to provide and install various other support
services Including specialized training and education to the consumers and their personnel regarding the above stated
activities

The Company holds directly 100% of the veting shares

MDI Mobile Dialogue International Limited was incorporated in Cyprus on 30 March 1999 as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Internet Q Telecommunication and internet services S A and Its prinaipal activibies relate to rendering of internet services,
audio text and SMS services, media buying and programming and the provision of bandwidth lease services The Company
holds indirectly 100% of the voting shares

Acalendra Enterprises Limited was incorporated in Cyprus on 22 April 2007, as a wholly owned subsidiary of MDI Mobile
Dialogue International Limited, and operates in the investment properties business The Company holds indirectly the 100%
of the voting shares

InternetQ Ukrame LLC was incorporated on 15 September 2008, as a wholly owned subsidiary of Internet Q
Telecommunication and internet services SA, in Kiev, Ukraine and its pnnapal activities consists of rendering
telecommunication services and organising the advertising campaigns through the mass media The Company holds
indirectly the 100% of the voting shares

Internetq Communication Services Trading LLC was incorporated on 16 July 2008, as a subsidiary of Internet Q
Telecommunication and internet services $ A, in Istanbul, Turkey Its principal activities relate to the rendering of
telecommunication services and value added services via GSM operators The Company helds indirectly 99 99% of the
voting shares, while the remaining 0 01% of shares 1s controlled by Mr Panagiotis Dimitropoulos, the Company’s majority
shareholder As at the reporting date, the non-controlling interest was immaterial for the Group’s financial statements and
therefore not accounted for

InternetQ Poland SPzoo was incorporated on 9 January 2009, as a subsidhary of InternetQ, Telecommunication and internet
services S A, in Warsaw, Poland Its principal activities relate to rendering of internet and telecommunication services The
Company holds indirectly the 100% of the voting shares
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Mobile Dialogue SPzoo was incorporated on 9 January 2010 as a subsidiary of internetQ Telecommunication and internet
services S A, in Warsaw, Poland Its principal activities relate to rendering of internet and telecommunication services The
company holds indirectly the 100% of the voting shares

InternetQ DO Brazl Atividates de Internet LTDA was incorporated on 9 February 2010 as a subsidiary of InternetQ
Telecommunication and internet services S A, 1n Sao Paulo of Brazil, Its principal activities relate to rendering of internet
and telecommunication services The Company holds indirectly the 99 99% of the voting shares, while the remaining 0 01%
of the shares 15 controlled by Mr Panagiotts Dimitropoulos, the Company’s majonty shareholder As at the reporting dates,
the non-controlhing interest was immatenal for the Group’s financial statements and therefore, it was not accounted for

Escape Mohile Dialogue LTD was incorporated on 21 September 2010 as a subsidiary of MDI Mobile Dialogue International
Lmited In Athens, Greece Its principal activities relate to rendering of internet and telecommunication services The
company holds indirectly the 100% of the voting shares

InternetQ Southeast Asia PTE LTD was incorporated on 3 June 2011 in Singapore Its principal activities relate to prowviding
value added services to mobile operators and to engage In the business of trading of software and related product and
services used in wireless communication and telecommunication The Company holds directly the 100% of the voting
shares

I-POP Networks PTE LTD was incorporated on 9 May 2001 1n Singapore Its principal activities relate to the development of
e-commerce applications and other telecommunication activities, as well as to carry on business relating to [T, touchscreen
hardware and applications, system engineering, multimedia application, electronic networking, and computer software
development, including act as suppliers, dealers, importers, exporter, wholesalers and retallers of services and products
relating to IT and touchscreen industries InternetQ Southeast Asia PTE LTD acquired 1-POP Networks PTE LTD and 1ts
subsidianies on 1 July 2011 The company holds indirectly 100% of the voting shares

Minh Phat Telecom Co LTD was incorporated on 3 September 2006 in Vietnam Its principal activities relate to providing,
selling and distributing license mobile content including but not hmited to sports, entertainment, business, and finance,
Additonal activities relate to online advertising and re-sell agency for telecommunication services The Company holds
indirectly 100% of the voting shares

I-POP Mobile (Holding) LTD was incorporated on 3 February 2011 in Bangkok, Thaland Its principal actwvities relate to
business consulting as well as being the holding company of }-POP Networks {(Thailand) Ltd The Company holds indirectly
100% of the voting shares

I-POP Mobile Phulippines INC was incorporated on 14 March 2007 in Philippines Its principal achivities relate to engaging in
the business of prowiding, trading and contracting services connected with electronic commerce and informatton
technology mncluding but not limited to website development and to software and hardware development The Company
holds indirectly 98% of the voting shares The remaining 2% is controlled by the former managing shareholders of I-POP
Networks Pte Ltd As at the reporting date, the non-controlling interest was immaterial for the Group’s financial statements
and therefore not accounted for

PT. I-POP Indonesia was incorporated on 28 February 2008 in Indonesia as a subsidiary of I-POP Networks PTE LTD Its
principal activities relate to telephone added value services The Company holds indirectly the 100% of voting shares

I-POP Networks (Thailand} LYD was incorporated on 3 February 2011 in Bangkok, Thatland as a subsidiary of I-POP Mobile
{Holding) LTD Its prnincipal actvities relate to the development of e-commerce applications and other telecommunication
activities  Additional activities relate to acting as broker and agent on telecommunication services The Company holds
indirectly 100% of the voting shares

I-POP Vietnam JVC LTD was incorporated on 11 April 2009 in Vietnam Its principal activities relate to the acquisition,
management and delivery of mobile content Additional activities of the company refer to the data processing and
exchange of information in the internet The Company acquired |-POP Vietnam JVC on 1 July 2011 and holds indirectly
100% of the voting shares

Mobile Entertainment Solutions LTD was incorporated on 19 March 2012 in England and Wales Its principal activities
relate to the rendering of internet and telecommunication services The Company holds directly 100% of the voting shares

InternetQ Hong Kong Co LTD was incorporated on 18 October 2012 in Hong Kong as a wholly owned subsidiary of
InternetQ Southeast Asia PTE LTD Its principal activities relate to the rendering of intemet and telecommumnication
services The Company holds indirectly 100% of the voting shares
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16 Intangible assets
Intangible assets in the accompanying financial statements of the Group are analysed as follows

Internally Software Non
Purchased generated under Customers compete

Software software Development relationships  agreement Total
Cost
At 1 January 2011 3,485,779 4,042,535 - - - 7,528,314
Additions 1,551,125 926,381 1,505,582 - - 3,983,088
Additions from Acquisitions (note 7) 12,130 736,968 - 595,083 203,186 1,547,367
Sales/ write offs {20,092) - - - - {20,092}
At 31 December 2011 5,028,942 5,705,884 1,505,582 595,083 203,186 13,038,677
Additions 5,234,892 1,253,511 497,484 - - 6,985,887
Transfers 1,140,143 365,439 (1,505,582) - - -
Sales/ write offs - - - - - -
At 31 December 2012 11,403,977 7,324,834 497,484 595,083 203,186 20,024,564
Amortisation
At 1 January 2011 (1,778,122) (2,224,399) - - - {4,002,521)
Additions {1,205,622) (801,062) - {19,836) - {2,026,520}
Sales/ write offs 7,962 - - - - 7,962
At 31 December 2011 {2,875,782) (3,025,461) - (19,836) - {6,021,079)
Additions (1,550,101} (1,055,684} - {35,672 (66,017) (2,711,474)
Sales / wnite offs - - - - - -
At 31 December 2012 (4,525,883} (4,081,145) - (59,508) {66,017) (8,732,553}
Net book value at 1 January 2011 1,707,657 1,818,136 - - - 3,525,793
Net book value at 31 December 2011 2,053,160 2,680,423 1,505,582 575,247 203,186 7,017,598
Net book value at 31 December 2012 6,878,094 3,243,689 497,484 535,575 137,169 11,292,011

“Software under development” relates to the development of the new version of the AKAZOO platform AKAZOO 2
introduces to the market amongst other, the following new core features, unhmited music strearming on the web and on
mobile through smartphone applications, automated sharing of music activity between socially connected users,
connection to social ecosystems {1 e Facebook), new intelligent search platform, flexible and multichannel billing methods

At year-end 2011 the development costs amounted to €1,505,582 of this new version of the platform was in progress and,
therefore, the related costs were presented as software under development The platform was launched 1n September
2012 and consequently the amount was reallocated to purchase software and internally generated software, while the
amartisation of the related development costs commenced at the same time

At the year-end 2012 an amount of €497,484, related to development costs for some additional new features of the
AKAZQO 2, not yet released, 15 presented as software under development These new features relate maimnly to the
development of applications for access across all Android, 105 and blackberry devices, mobile phones and Tablets and
Smart TVs, as well as for the development of sophisticated recommendation engines and AKAZOO 2 APl These features
and applications are expected to be released on Apnl 2013 Upon the completion of the respective features the
amortisation will commence

Customer relationships and non-compete agreement refer to the intangible assets recognised separately from the
acquisition of I-POP Networks Pte Ltd For further information please refer to note 7 The relative amortisation of the non-
compete agreement commenced in September 2012 after the termination of the prior managing and adwising shareholders
of I-POP
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17. Non-current and current financial assets

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Long term loans and recevables
Bond loan convertible to shares 2,602,605 - 2,602,605 -
Non-current financial assets 2,602,605 - 2,602,605 -
Current loans and receivables
Loan 102,519 - 102,519 -
Current finanaal assets 102,519 - 102,519 -

On 23 January 2012, the Company has entered into 2 2 5 million euro convertibie bond loan facility with Aventurine S A
Aventurine 1s an established independent software developer with focus on the production and marketing of enline games
{e g Darkfall's sequel)

The bond loan 1s classified as loans and recevables and recognised at amortised cost using the effective interest rate The
bond loan will mature in January 2015 and bears an interest of 6% per annum The total interest income from the bond
loan for the year ended 2012 amounted to €102,605 (2011 € 0} and 1t 1s included in finance income in the accompanying
financial statements

In January 2012, Konstantinos Korletis and Panagiotis Dimitropoulos, according to the bond loan agreement, were
appointed as non-executive members of Aventurine’s S A board of directors (out of five members in total),

Additicnally, on 27 January 2012 the Company has entered into a loan facility agreement for a principal amount of
€100,000 with Aventurine S A which bears interest of 6% per annum The loan faclity has a matunity date of 27 lanuary
2013 however the loan can be renewed annually for a period of one more year after the first year If both parties do not
object to such a renewal Moreover, according to the loan facility the Company may exercise its right to seek repayment of
the loan at any time with a month’s written notice to the borrower The total interest income from the loan for the year
ended 2012 amounted to €5,509 (2011 € 0) and it 1s included in finance income in the accompanying financial statements

According to the bond loan agreement the Group will have the option to convert the bonds (conversion option) into equity
The conversion rate i1s subject to the exercise penod as follows
a] Assuming the conversion takes place within seven months from the launch of Darkfall's sequel (code-named
Darkfall 2 0}, the Group will own 40 06% of the Aventurine share capital
b) Assuming the conversion takes place within the period commencing seven months after the release date of
Darkfall 2 0 and ending six months thereafter, the Group will own 28 57% of Aventurine share capital
€} Assuming the conversion takes place within the period commencing thirteen months after the release date of
Darkfall 2 0 and ending on the final repayment date, the conversion rate 1s determined accerding to a formula
linked to Aventurine’s EBITDA

Following such conversion, the Group will alse have the option to buy additional shares of Aventurine {call option} in order
to control the majonity of its share capital {50 1%} As of the reporting date, the online game Darkfall 2 0 had not been
launched and therefore the conversion option and call option were not exercisable

The imtiat expected date of the launch of the online game Dark Fall 2 0 was in August 2012, however due to various delays
the game was not released by the reporting date, and currently the expected date of the release I1s at the end of April
2013 Considering these delays in the release of the on-line game Darkfall 2 0 and therefore the uncertainty in achieving
Aventurine’s Business Plan, the fair value of the conversion option and the call option, mentioned above, was deemed to
be zero both as at the date of entering into the convertible bond facity in January 2012 and as at 31 December 2012
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18.Trade receivables
Trade recewvables in the accompanying financial statements are analysed as follows

Annual Report 2012

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Domestic and foreign customers 30,894,248 12,907,662 - -
Less allowance for doubtful accounts recevable (487,858} {487,858) - -
Closing balance 30,406,390 12,419,804 - B
The movement In the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable i1s as follows
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Opening balance 487,858 514,874 - -
Provision for the year 37,245 4,859 - -
Utilisation for the year (37,245) (31,875} -
Closing balance 487,858 487,858 - -
As of 31 December 2012 trade recevables of €37,245 (2011 € 31,875) were impaired and fully provided for
The aging analysis of trade receivables 1s as follows
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Nather past due nor impaired 30,227,596 12,277,725 - -
Past due not impaired
90-180 days 69,171 85,527 - -
181-365 days 50,097 46,151 - -
>365 days 59,526 10,401 - -
Closing balance 30,406,390 12,419,804 - -

Trade recewvables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-90 days’ terms Before accepting a new customer
the Group assesses the potential customer’s credit quality Credit quality assessment 15 mainly based on financial
information requested from the customers and available information in the market considering that many of the Group’s
customers are large scaled operators and aggregators Moreover the Group policy is to cooperate with a customer in a
single project and therafter expand its cooperation to other projects and countries Credit quality of customers 15 assessed
once a year or frequently if needed, and 15 based on facts such as, finanaial difficulties of the customer and period of

payments
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19 Prepayments and other recevables

Annual Report 2012

Prepayments and other receivables in the accompanying financial statements are analysed as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Other tax advances 722,960 1,041,199 - -
Advances to service providers 2,306,534 2,512,012 -
Prepaid expenses 541,384 1,667,512 19,146
Accrued iIncome 626,264 9,591,407 - -
Amounts due from related parties - - 22,834,842 13,022,702
Other debtors 98,316 126,824 35,356 26,874
4,295,458 14,938,954 22,889,344 13,049,576
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts recevable {1,406,226) {1,321,033) - -
Total 2,889,232 13,617,921 22,889,344 13,049,576
The movement in the allowance for doubtful accounts s as follows
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Opening balance 1,321,033 1,057,000 - -
Prowision for the year 85,193 264,033 - -
Closing balance 1,406,226 1,321,033 - -
20. Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash in the accompanying financial statements are analysed as follows
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Cashn hand 84,614 94,048 231 -
Cash at banks 8,612,788 9,563,248 1,229,387 6,344,914
Total cash and cash eguivalents 8,697,402 9,657,296 1,229,618 6,344,914
Restricted cash 633,538 926,136 210,357 645,835
Total cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 9,330,940 10,583,432 1,439,975 6,990,749

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on monthly bank depostt rates Interest earned on cash at banks and
time deposits 1s accounted for on an accrual basis and for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to £€73,623 (2011
€96,330) for the Group, and 1s included in financial iIncome {Note 10) in the accompanying income statement

Restricted cash represents funds deposited as collateral, for the issuance of bank guarantees ansing in the ordinary course
of the business The Group maintains several bank facilities amounted to €105 million for the i1ssuance of letter of

guarantees
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21.Share capital, share premium and other components of equity
The movement of the Company’s share capital and share premium as at 31 December 2012 is analysed as follows

share share Costs’' related

2012 Noof  capital premium to capital Total

shares n€ n € increases in € ncrease
At 1 January 2012 31,381,623 94,884 25,376,214 - 25,471,098
issued 2/4/2012 36,457 110 103,638 - 103,748
issued 10/5/2012 4,629 14 15,285 - 15,299
reversed in share premium account (note 26) - - 211,916 - 211,916
1ssued 31/7/2012 2,860,000 9,119 7,652,083 {379,835} 7,281,367
issued 25/9/2012 12,000 38 34,539 - 34,577
issued 25/9/2012 88,761 246 286,639 - 286,885
1issued 25/9/2012 15,000 47 43,173 - 43,220
1issued 25/9/2012 52,493 165 151,086 - 151,251
issued 15/10/2012 100,000 277 322,933 - 323,210
1ssued 22/10/2012 4,505 14 11,601 - 11,615
1ssued 31/10/2012 40,000 124 108,004 - 108,128
1issued 7/12/2012 30,657 85 99,001 - 99,086
issued 7/12/2012 69,343 222 191,392 - 191,614
At 31 December 2012 34,695,468 105,345 34,607,504 (379,835) 34,333,014

The movement of the Company’s share capital and share premium as at 31 December 2011 15 analysed as follows

share share  costs related to

2011 No of capital premium  capital increases Total

shares n € m€ in € increase
At 1 January 2011 25,697,435 79,400 9,203,906 - 9,283,306
1ssued 27 January 2011 36,457 106 50,791 - 50,897
1ssued 27 April 2011 165,230 477 228,625 - 229,102
1ssued 9 June 2011 200,000 560 544,732 - 545,292
reversed from share premium account (note 26) - - {211,916) - (211,916)
1ssued 1 July 2011 914,865 2,287 2,954,649 - 2,956,936
1ssued 1 July 2011 4,363,636 12,054 13,247,613 {p42,186) 12,617,481
At 31 December 2011 31,381,623 94,884 26,018,400 (642,186) 25,471,098

On 27 January 2011, 36,457 ordinary shares 0 25 pence each were issued at a price of £1 20 These shares were Issued to
the non-executive directors of the Company In consideration of the release of the Company's liabihity to pay a portion of
their annual fee

On 27 Apnil 2011, 169,230 ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each were 1ssued and fully paid at a price of £1 20 pursuant to the
exercise warrants The above resulted to total proceeds of €229,102

On 9 June 2011, 200,000 ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each were 1ssued and allotted to certain eligible employees of the
Company These shares were i1ssued under the Share Incentive Plan following the achievement of the certain performance
targets for the financial year ended 31 December 2010 Please refer to Note 26

On 1 July 2011, the Company 1ssued 914,865 ordinary shares as consideration for the 100% interest 1n I-POP Networks Pte
Ltd Please refer to Note 7

On 1 July 2011, 4,363,636 ordinary shares of 025 pence each were allotted and fully paid in cash at a price of £2 75
{resulting to total net proceeds of €12,617,481 (after transactions costs of €642,186)
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On 2 Apnl 2012 and 10 May 2012, 36,457 and 4,629 ordinary shares 0 25 pence each were 1ssued at a price of £2 365 and
£2 65 to the non-executive directors of the Company These shares were ssued 1n consideration of the release of the
Company’s hability to pay a portion of their annual fee

On 31 July 2012, 2,860,000 ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each were allotted and fully paid in cash at a price of £2 10
(resulting to total net proceeds of €7,281,368 (after transactions costs of €379,835)

On 25 September 2012, 12,000 ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each were 1ssued at a price of £2 295 These shares were
1ssued to Mr Stuart Cruickshank in consideration of the release of the Company's habihity to pay a pertion of his annual fee

On 25 September 2012, 88,761 ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each we issued at a price of £2 92 resulting in an increase of
€286,885 In share capatal and share premium and an equivalent decrease in the account “other components of equity
These shares were 1ssued to the prior managing shareholders of I-POP Networks PTE LTD in respect of their contingent
consideration and after achieving the performance conditions for the fiscal year 2011, under the terms of the sell and
purchase agreement of I-POP Networks PTE LTD

On 25 September 2012, 15,000 ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each were i1ssued at a price of £2 295 to certain eligible
employees of the Company under the terms of the Company’s share incentive plan (Note 26}

On 25 September 2012, 52,493 ordinary shares of 025 pence each were issued at a pnce of £2 295 (total amount
€151,251) to the prior managmng and advising shareholders of I-POP as part of the compensation package for the
termination of therr services as directors of I-POP Networks PTE LTD and its subsicharies according to the sale and purchase
Agreement

On 15 October 2012, 100,000 ordinary shares in total of 0 25 pence each were 1ssued at a price of £2 92 in respect of the
contingent consideration upon the acquisition of 1-POP Networks PTE LTD to the prior shareholder and CEC of the company
(Note 7)

0On 22 October 2012, 4,505 ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each were i1ssued at a price of £2 10 to Stuart Cruickshank as part
of the compensation package for the termination of his services as a non-executive director of the Company

On 22 October 2012, 40,000 ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each were 1ssued at a price of £2 18 to Konstantinos Karletis in
accordance with the terms of an agreement by which Mr Konstantinos Korletis was appointed as the Company's Executive
Chairman

On 7 December 2012, 100,000 ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each were 1ssued to the prior shareholder and CEQ of I-POP
Networks PTE LTD 30,657 of these shares were 1ssued at a price of £2 92 in respect of the contingent consideration in
relation to the acquisition of I-POP Networks PTE LTD 69,343 of these shares were 1ssued at a price of £2 16 1n respect of
his compensation package for the termination of his services {(Note 7)

As aresult of the 3,313,845 new ordinary shares issued within the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011 5,684,188 ordinary
shares), the Company has a total of 34,695,468 ordinary shares of 025 pence each as at 31 December 2012 (2011
31,381,623), with voting rights, in 1ssue The Company’s ordinary shares have no preferences and restrictions including
restrnicttons on the distribution of dividends

According to the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 28 June 2012, the directors of the Company have the
authonty to aflot equity securities on a yearly basis up to an aggregate nominal amount of £31,250 {12 5 million shares)
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The movement of other components of equity as at 31 December 2012 1s analysed as follows

Annual Report 2012

Group
2012 2011
Opemng balance 936,057 -
Contingent consideration in respect of I-POP acquisition (Note 7) 936,057
Change in contingent censideration within the year 186,737 -
lssue of 88,761 shares in respect of the contingent consideration of 1-POP (Note 7) (286,885) -
Issue of 100,000 shares in respect of the contingent consideration of {-POP {Note 7} {323,210} -
Issue of 30,657 shares in respect of the contingent consideration of 1-POP (Note 7) (99,086) -
200,000 shares awarded to the prior shareholder of I-POP as compensation {Note 7} 552,653 -
Share Incentive Plan {Note 26) 232,781 -
Closing balance 1,199,047 936,057
22. Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings
a} Long-term loans.
Long-term loans in the accompanying financial statements are analysed as follows
Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Bond loans 841,900 943,700 - -
Other loans - 41,668 - .
Total 841,900 985,368 - -
Less current portion
- bond loans (601,800) (101,800) - -
- gther loans - (41,668) - -
Total current portion (601,500) (143,468) - -
Long term portion 240,100 841,900 - -

The Group has entered into two Bond Loans agreements as follows

s In March 2007 the Group entered into a Bond Loan agreement for a principal amount of €800,000 which bears
interest at the six-month Eunbor plus a margin of 2 3% The repayment of the Bond 15 in 12 semi-annual installments
The first 11 installments are equal and amount to €50,900 The final installment will be made on the Bond’s matunty
on 20 March 2014 and amounts to €240,100 The first installment was paid on 22 September 2008

+ In March 2008 the Group entered into a Bond Loan agreement for a principal amount of €500,000 which bears
interest at the six-menth Eunbor plus a margin of 2 0% The repayment will be made by one installment on 8 Apnil

2013

The total interest expense for long-term borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to €47,270 (2011
€49,712) for the Group and 15 included 1n financial expenses {Note 10}, in the accompanying consolidated income

statement
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b) Short-term borrowings*
The Group has short-term borrowings (overdraft facilities) with annual variable interest rates which vary from 5% to 8%,
The table below presents the available credit ines of the Company together with the utthzed portion

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Credit ines available 5,350,000 7,350,000 - -
Unused portion (3,969,491} (5,968,769) - -
Used Portion 1,380,509 1,381,231 - -

The total interest expense for short-term borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2012, amounted to €116,708
{2011 €142,063) and 15 included in financial expenses (Note 10), in the accompanying income statements

23 Trade Payables
Trade accounts payable in the accompanying financial statements are analysed as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Payables to supphers 10,807,890 7,719,152 148,706 76,341
Amounts due to related parties - - 66,746 -
Total 10,807,890 7,719,152 215,452 76,341

24. Accrued and other Current Liabilities
Accrued and other current labiities in the accompanying financial statements are analysed as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
Value added tax 245,230 124,060 - -
Social security payable 114,129 130,822 - -
Other taxes and duties 91,891 274,153 - -
Accrued expenses 1,315,845 6,849,513 27,158 84,592
Deferred income - 48,622 - -
Other current habilities 158,869 101,848 1,018 4,785
Total 1,925,964 7,529,018 28,176 89,377

25 Employee Benefits Liabihity

The employee benefits labiity refers only to the Greek subsidiary (InternetQ Communication and Internet services S A }
since the majonity of the Group’s personnel are employed by the Greek entity Additionally, the Greek subsidiary supports
through the employed personnel the operations of the other subsidiaries and therefore, the number of personnel and the
amount of the respective reserve for the other operations are not considered to be matenial for the Group In tota!

Under Greek labor law, employees and workers are entitled to termination payments i the event of dismissal or
retirement with the amount of payment varying in relation to the employee’s or worker’s compensation, length of service
and manner of termination (dismissed or retired) Employees or waorkers who resign or are dismissed with cause are not
entitled to termination payments The indemnity payable in case of retirement is equal to 40% of the amount which would
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be payable upon dismissal without cause In Greece, local practice 1s that pension plans are not funded In accordance with
this practice, the Company does not fund these plans

The Group charges the income statement for benefits earned in each penod with a corresponding increase in employee
benefits labtity Benefits payments made each period to retirees are charged against this hability For the year ended 31
December 2012, actual benefits paid amounting to €81,797 (2011 36,572) and represent compensation paid to employees
of the Group for the termination of their services

The employee benefit hability has been determined based on valuations performed by AON Hewitt an accredited
independent valuer, as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 and s as follows

Group Group

2012 2011 2012 2011
Present value of unfunded obligations 42,500 54,817 - -
Unrecognised actuanal net loss {11,037) {27,1459) - -
Net hability in the consolidated statement of financial position 31,463 27,668 - -
Components of net periodic pension cost
Service cost 10,196 9,987 - -
Interest cost 2,522 1,837 - -
Amortization of unrecogmised actuarial loss 1,675 1,478 - -
Regular charge to operations 14,393 13,302 - -
Employee hability accrued for additional voluntary
contributions 71,200 34,436 - -
Reversal of excess benefits - - - -
Total charge to operations 85,593 47,738 - -
Net hability at beginning of year 27,668 16,503 - -
Actual benefits paid by the Company (81,797} {36,572) - -
Expense recognized in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive iIncome 85,592 47,737 - -
Translation adjustment of foreign entity - - - -
Net habihity at end of year 31,463 27,668 - -
Net hability at start of penod 54,817 39,082 - -
Service cost 10,196 5,987 - -
Interest cost 2,522 1,837 - -
Benefits pad {81,797} {36,572) - -
Employee hability accrued for additional voluntary
contributions 68,005 33,170 - -
Reversal of excess benefits - - - -
Actuanal net loss (11,243) 7,313 - -
Translation adjustment of foreign entity - - - -
Present value of obligation at end of period 42,500 54,817 - -
Principal Assumptions
Discount Rate 270% 4 60% - -
Inflation Rate 2 00% 2 00% - -
Rate of compensation increase 3 00% 3 00% - -
Average remaining working hfe (years}) 13 70 12 93 - -

Actuarial gains/losses are amortised based on the remaining working Iife of the employees
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26. Share based payment plans

Share incentive plan

The Company adopted the Share Incentive Plan on 6 December 2010 and amended on 19 November 2012, which will last
for a period of three years commencing in 2011 Under the Share Incentive Plan, shares of the Company are granted to
employees subject to satisfaction of certain performance conditions which are based on earnings-based targets The
remuneration committee 15 responsible for defiming on a yearly basis the eligible employees as well as speafic earnings-
based targets

For the year ended 31 December 2011 200,000 ordinary shares were issued and allotted to certain eligible employees of
the Company following the achievement of certain performance targets for the financial year ended 31 December 2010
The farr value of the shares granted 1s the market value at the date of grant that 1s £2 40 (total value of shares €555,876),
while the share option vests one year after the eligible employees have received the award letter on 28 March 2011 as long
as they are still employed on such date The expense recogrised in the income statement for the year ended 31 December
2011 1s €343,960 (Note 9) while the remaiming amount €211,916 1s recognised 1in the ncome statement with a
corresponding increase in the share premium account in the year ended 31 December 2012

For the year ended 31 December 2012, 435,000 ordinary shares were granted to certain eligible employees of the Company
following the achievement of certain performance targets for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 The fair value of
the shares options 1s the market value at the date of the grant that s £2 17

According to the amended share incentive plan 1n 2012, 50% of the shares wil! be issued to the employees 12 months after
the date of the award letters on 28 03 2013, (f they are still employed to the company on such date The share option vests
12 months after the issuance of shares since the employees cannot transfer or sell the shares for this period The remaining
50% of the shares will be 1ssued 24 months after the date of the award letters on 28 03 2014, if the employees are still
employed to the company in such date The share options vest 24 months after the issuance of the shares since the eligible
employees cannot transfer or sell the shares for the respective period after the 1ssuance date

According to the Company’s best estimate regarding the employees which will actually receive the shares, the total value of
the share options were estimated to be €911,418, while the amount of €232,781 (note 9) 15 included in the income
statement and in the equity account “other components of equity” respectively

Moreover, within the 2012 year an eligible employee resigned and the Company’s board of directors decided on 25
September 2012, to award him the share options voluntarily The company has decded to treat this award as
“replacement award on termination of employment” and account for the award as forfeiture Following this, the fair value
of the new share options 1s the market value at the date of the grant £2 295 (total value of the shares €43,220) Since the
eligible employee has full entitlement of the shares, the new award s fully vested at the date of the Company’s decision
and expensed in the iIncome statement (note 9}

Non-executive directors share payments
Under the Non-executive directors’ deferred share plan adopted on 29 October 2011 and amended on 28 March 2012, the

Company may at its discretion award shares in discharge of its obligations to pay remuneration, any Director’s fee or make
any other payment under thewr appointment letters The terms of the Non-Executive Directors share payments are
determined by the Company’s remuneration committee and approved by the Company’s Board of Directors, on a yearly
basis

For the year ended 31 December 2012, 53,086 (2011 36,457} ordinary shares were issued to the Non-Executive Directors
of the Company under the terms and conditions set out in their letters of appointment These shares were 1ssued In
consideration of the release of the Company's Liability to pay a portion of thewr annual fee The total cost recognised in the
income statement amounted to €149,854 (2011 €50,897)

Furthermore, 4,505 ordinary shares were 1ssued to Stuart Cruickshank as part of the compensation package for the

termuination of his services on October 2012 as a non-executive director of the Company, in lieu of the six months notice
provided for in his contract The total cost recognised in the iIncome statement amounted to €11,615
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Addrtionally, 40,000 ordinary shares amounted to €108,128, were 1ssued to Konstantinos Korletis in accordance with the
terms of an agreement by which Mr Konstantinos Korletis was apponted as the Company's Executive Chairman on
November 2012

27.Related parties

Related parties consist of companies that have a significant influence or control over the Group (shareholders) or are
companies which are owned by the Group’s shareholders All transactions with related parties are carried out at arm’s-
length and have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements

The Company’s transactions and account balances with related comparnies are as follows

Purchases

Related with Sales to from

Related party InternetQ PLC  Year ended  related parties Related Parties
MDI Mobile Dialogue International Limited Subsidiary 2011 - -
2012 - 66,746

InternetQ Communication and internet services S A Subsidiary 2011 - -
2012 - 23,043

Total 2011 - -
Total 2012 - 89,789
Amounts Amounts

Related with due from due to

Related party INTERNETQ PLC Yearended Related Parties  Related Parties
MDI Mobile Diatogue International Limited Subsidiary 2011 2,411,241 -
2012 10,635,994 66,746

InternetQ Brazl Atividates de Internet LTDA Subsidiary 2011 20,073 -
2012 44,786 -

InternetQ Poland Spzoo Subsidiary 2011 793,564 -
2012 48,097 -

Mobile Dialogue Spzoo Subsidiary 2011 1,133,004 -
2012 214,233 -

InternetQ Communication Services Trading LLC Subsidiary 2011 1,217,546 .
2012 1,060,649 -

InternetQ Communication and Internet services S A Subsidiary 2011 6,471,059 -
2012 8,451,720 -

InternetQ) South East Asia PTE LTD Substdiary 2011 976,215 -
2012 2,379,363 -
Total 2011 13,022,702 -
Total 2012 22,834,842 66,746

Terms and conditions with transactions with related parties’

Cutstanding balances at the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 are unsecured, interest free (except from the
intercompany loans) and settlement occurs in cash There have been no guarantees provided or recewved for any related
party receivables and payables

For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relaung to
amounts owed by related parties This assessment 15 undertaken each financial year through examining the financial

position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates

The Company’s majonity shareholder is Mr Panagiotis Dimitropoulos, holding 52 65% of the voting shares
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Salaries, fees and share incentive plans (excluding non-cash benefits and defined benefit plans)* for the members of the
Board of Directors and the senior management of the Group and the Company for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011 are analysed as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Salartes and fees for executive members of the BOD 664,770 539,426 222,477 74,045
Salartes and fees for non -executive members of the BOD 300,955 159,968 300,955 159,968
965,726 699,394 523,432 234,013
Salaries and fees for senior management 319,072 449,707 196,294 -
Total 1,284,798 1,149,101 719,726 234,013

*For detatls of the amounts paid in relation to the defined benefit plans refer to the remuneration report

The salanes, fees and share incentive plan expenses for each director for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 are
analysed as follows

Group

2012 2011
Konstantinos Korletis Executive {Chairman) 152,999 210,086
Stuart Cruickshank (prior Chairman) 79,837 49,562
Panagiotis Dimitropoulos {Founder and CEQ) 188,899 192,441
Veronica Nocett) (Chief Financial Officer) 106,485 68,454
Michael Jolliffe {Non-executive Director) 23,120 24,977
lain Johnston {Non-executive Director) 37,999 35,020
Robert Bevendge (Non-executive Director) 25,102 -
Total salanes and fees 614,441 580,540
Konstantinos Korletis {Executive Chairman) - 1,970
Panagiotis Dimitropoules (Founder and CED) 2,526 6,840
Veronica Nocett) (Chief Financial Officer) 1,438 658
Total defined benefit 3,964 9,468
Konstantinos Korletis {Chairman) 74,319 21,465
Panagiotis Dimitropoules {Founder and CEQ) 17,667 11,647
Veronica Nocetti {Chief Financial Officer) 18,399 18,144
Total benefits 110,385 51,256
Konstantinos Korletis {Executive Chairman) 107,525 -
Stuart Cruickshank (prior Chairmanj 76,001 14,403
Michael Jolliffe (Non-executive Director) 45,567 21,603
lain Johnston {Non-executive Director) 30,376 14,403
Robert Bevenidge (Non-executive Director) 10,129 -
Total Non-executive Deferred Share Plan 269,598 50,409
Panagiotis Dimitropoulos {(Founder and CEO) 57,837 -
Veronica Nocett {Chief Financial Officer) 51,025 68,445
Total Share Incentive Plan 108,862 68,445
Total salanies, fees and share incentive plans and benefits 1,107,250 760,118

On 24 October 2012, Stuart Cruickshank announced his retirement of the Company’s board of directors as a non-executive
chairrman Konstantinos Korletis {prior chief executive officer) was promoted to the new role of Executive Chairman, while
Panagiotis Dimitropoulos, (Founder of the Company) was appointed Chief Executive Officer

Directors receive a salary in equal monthly installments under each service agreement The increases applied in their basic
salary are in hine with the increases applied for staff throughout the Group Benefits principally comprise a company car and
health insurance The directors are not entitied to any pension arrangement

67




internetq’
a INTERNETQ PLC Annual Report 2012

Specifically, the Non-executive Directors are entitled to receive part of their fees in ordinary shares of the Company {Note
26) Moreover, their appointment 15 for an imitial term of two to three years {commenced in December 2010) to be
reviewed annually and terminable on three months’ notice by the Director and six menths’ notice by the Company

Transactions with key management personnel

The Group’s Investment property 1s currently rented to the Company’s CFO The rent for 2012 amounted to €14,400 (2011
€10,800) and 1s based on normal market rates and conditions The rent 15 payable in a monthly basis for the duration of the
contract As at 31 December 2012 there were no amounts due to the Group

Apart from the above, the Company's majonty shareholder, Panagiotis Dimitropoulos, has recewved advances amounting to
€24,000 as of 31 December 2012 (2011 € 90,000} for travelling and other business expenses These amounts are not
Interest bearing and are repayable on demand

28.Commitments and contingencies

a) Contingent habihties

The Group as at 31 December 2012 has been imposed fines from Polish regulaters of an amount of €188,018 (2011
€188,018) Based on updated legal adwvice the Group has recognised a provision of €51,830 (2011 €51,830) for the above
cases as It 1s the best estimate given the current knowledge, facts and circumstances The Group estimates based on legal
adwvice, that the above mentioned legal cases will be settled after one year from the reporting date

Additionally, the Group has received a number of awil court claims regarding certain mobile marketing campaigns In
Poland The total amount of the claims against the Group as at 31 December 2012 1s €168,000 (2011 €218,000) The Group
estimates that the above mentioned legal cases will be settled after one year from the reporting date The Group’ legal
adwisors closely monitor the abovementioned cases The Group, after taking appropriate legal advice, has assessed that the
outcome of this legal claims will not give nise to any losses and consequently has not recognised any provision for the year
ended 31 December 2012 The provision recognised for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounting to €14,300 which
related to a specific case, was reversed during 2012 since the case was settled in favour of the Group

An entity in the Group from 2011 1s a defendant in a legal action involving labor dispute with five prior employees of the
Group for a total amount of £180,000 The Management believes, based on legal advice, that there 15 a present obligation
that will probably require an outflow of resources within 12 months of the reporting date The prowvision as of 31 December
2012 amounted to €108,000 (2011 €55,027) The provision s included in statement of financial positton under accruals and
other current liabihities

The movement of the provisions for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 1s analysed as follows

Group
2012 2011
Opening balance 66,130 126,000
Prowvision for the year - 22,715
Reversal in the year (14,300} {82,585}
Closing balance 51,830 66,130

b) Commitments

Operating leases

The Group has entered into commercial operating lease agreements for the lease of office spaces and cars These lease
agreements have an average life of 5 to 10 years with renewal terms included in certain contracts Future mirimum rentals
payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, are as follows

Group
2012 2011
Within one year 445,456 506,714
After one year but not more than five years 813,573 926,597
Mare than five years 348,096 372,960
Total 1,607,125 1,806,271
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The Group has contingent liabilities in respect of performance bank guarantees arising in the ordinary course of business
These guarantees amounted to €40,000 at 31 December 2012 {2011 €50,000)

29, Financial risk management objectives and policies

Fair Value

The carrying amounts reflected in the accompanying statements of financial position for cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other accounts receivable, prepayments, financial assets, trade and other accounts payable and accrued and other
current habilities approximate their respective far values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financiai

Instruments

The fair value of variable rate loans and borrowings approximate the amounts appearing in the statements of financial

position

The table below set out a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments

that are carried in the financial statements

carrying amount fair values
2012 2011 2012 2011
Financial assets
Non-current financial assets 2,602,605 2,602,605 -

Trade receivables
Prepayments and other receivbles
Accrued income
Other debtors
Current financial assets
Cash and cash equvalents
Restricted cash

30,406,390 12,419,804

626,264 9,591,407
98,316 126,824
102,519 -
8,697,402 9,657,296
633,538 926,136

30,406,390 12,419,804

626,264 9,591,407
98,316 126,824
102,519 -
8,697,402 5,657,256
633,538 926,136

Total

43,167,034 32,721,467

43,167,034 32,721,467

Financial habihities

carrying amount

fair values

2012 2011

2012 2011

Trade payables
Long-term interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Current portion of long term interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Short-term interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Accrual and other current hiabilities
Accrued expenses
Other current habilities

10,807,890 7,719,152
240,100 841,900
601,800 143,468

1,380,509 1,381,231

1,315,845 6,849,513
158,869 101,848

10,807,890 7,715,152
240,100 841,500
601,800 143,468

1,380,509 1,381,231

1,315,845 6,849,513
158,869 101,848

Total

14,505,013 17,037,112

14,505,013 17,037,112
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Similarly, the table below set out a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and far value of the Company’s financial
instruments that are carnied (n the financial statements

carrying amount fair values
2012 2011 2012 2011
Financial assets
Non-current finanoial assets 2,602,605 - 2,602,605 -
Prepayments and other receivbles
Other debtors 35,356 26,874 35,356 26,874
Amounts due from related parties 22,834,842 13,022,702 22,834,842 13,022,702
Current financial assets 102,519 - 102,519 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,225,618 6,344,914 1,229,618 6,344,914
Restricted cash 210,357 645,835 210,357 645,835
Total 27,015,297 20,040,325 27,015,297 20,040,325
carrying amount fair values
2012 2011 2012 2011
Finanaal hablities
Trade payables
Payables to suppliers 148,706 76,341 148,706 76,341
Amounts due to related parties 66,746 - 66,746 -
Accrual and other current labilities
Accrued expenses 27,158 84,592 27,158 84,592
Other current habilities 1,018 4,785 1,018 4,785
Total 243,628 165,718 243,628 165,718

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclasing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique
e level 1 quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitieslevel 2 other techmigques for
which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fatr value are observable, either directly or indirectly
e Level 3 techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded farr value that are not basedon
observable market data

As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group categonsed all financial assets and habibties in level 3 as
explained above

The Group 15 exposed to market risk, credit nsk and hquidity nsk The Group has developed a nsk management process to
monitor and control these risks The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of the
financial markets and seeks to recognise potential adverse effects en the Group's financial performance

The Board of Directors and senior management carry out the risk management function, The Group does not undertake
any transactions of a speculative nature or which are unrelated to its activities

Market nisk

Market risk i1s the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices Market prices comprise mainly the following types of risks interest rate risk, currency nisk, commodity price
risk and other price risk, such as equity nsk Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and
deposits

Interest rate nisk: Interest rate risk 1s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes n market interest rates The Group’s exposure to the nisk of changes in market interest rates relates
pnmarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates With respect to the long-term borrowings,
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management morutors on a constant basis the interest rate vaniances and evaluates the need for assuming certain
positions for the hedging of such risks

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's profit before tax {through the impact of the outstanding
floating rate borrowings at the end of the period on profits} to reasonable changes in interest rates, with all other variables

held constant

Sensitivity Analysis of Group’s Borrowings {short and long term) due to Interest Rate Changes

2012 2011

Euro 1% 22,468 1% (37,500
1% (22,468) -1% 37,500

The positive impact of interest received from deposits 1s excluded from the above analysis

Foreign currency risk: Foreign currency risk 15 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange
rates relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense are denominated in a different
currency from the Group’s functional currency) and the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries The Group Is active
internationally and s exposed to varations in foreign currency exchange rate which arise mainly from Poland’s ZLOTY,
Turkish Lira UK pound and Singapore Dollar The Group’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies 1s
not matenial There is no foreign currency risk relating to finanaal instruments as there are no such instruments

Sensitivity analysis of Group’s foreign exchange differences due to exchange rate fluctuations

2012 2011
Poland ZLOTY 1% 12,866 1% 3,960
-1% {12,866) -1% (3,960}
Turkish Lira 1% (3,465) 1% {5,446)
-1% 3,465 -1% 5,446
UK pound 1% 225,743 1% 107,921
-1% {225,743) -1% {107,921)
Singapore Dollar 1% 47,030 1% 18,812
-1% (47,030} -1% (18,812)
Total 1% 282,173 1% 125,248
-1% (282,173} -1% {125,248)

Credit nsk Credit risk 15 the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
cantract, leading to a financial loss The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit nisk, due to the failure of counter parties to perform their obhigations as at 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011, in relation to each class of recogmsed financial assets, 1s the carrying amount of
those assets as indicated in the accompanying statements of financial position

Country risk

Country risk refers to a collection of risks associated with investing in a country These risks, amongst others, include
political rnsk, economic risk, sovereign risk and transfer risk which 1s the risk of capital being locked up or frozen by
government actions Country risks can affect the business environment and consequently may adversely affect the
operations, the liquidity and the value of assets in a specific country
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Constdering that the Group operates in a vanety of countries, it 15 exposed to country nsks which can sigmificantly impact
the existing business and potential growth The Group 1s currently focused on analyzing the pessible negative effects from
the adverse economic climate in Greece and Cyprus and i1s currently evaluating solutions for mitigating these risks

However, up until now the Group estimates that the negative economic chmate in Greece as well as in Cyprus (please also
refer to Note 30 - Events after the reporting penod) will not significantly affect overall the Group’s operations, financial
position and liquidity, as well as the Group’s assets carrying values As at 31 December 2012, revenues generated in Greece
amounted to €3 2 million accounting for 4% of the total revenues of the Group Therefore, a decrease In revenues and
profit margin generated in Greece would not have a significant impact an the Group's financial position and performance

Liquidity risk' The Group manages hquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that adequate borrowing
faciities are maintaned The Group has sufficient undrawn committed and uncommitted borrowing facilities that can be
utilised to fund any potential shortfall in cash resources

Prudent hquidity risk management implies the avalability of funding through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities, cash and cash equivalents and the ability to close out those positions as and when required by the business or
project

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of financial llabiities at 31 December 2012 and 2011 respectively, based
on contractual undiscounted payments

Group
Lessthan 6tol2
2012 On demand & months months 1to5 years Total
Bank debt 1,380,509 614,290 106,481 139,845 2,241,129
Trade payables - 10,807,890 - - 10,807,890
Accruals and other habiities - 1,448,600 8,377 17,737 1,474,714
Total 1,380,509 12,870,780 114,858 157,586 14,523,733
Lessthan 6tol2
2011 On demand 6 months months 1to 5 years Total
Bank debt 1,381,231 83,899 80,213 931,204 2,476,547
Trade payables - 7,719,152 - - 7,719,152
Accruals and other habilities - 6,899,983 - - 6,999,983
Total 1,381,231 14,803,034 80,213 931,204 17,195,682
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Company
Lessthan 6tol2
2012 Ondemand 6 months months 1to5 years Total
Bank debt - - - - -
Trade payables 215,453 - - 215,453
Accruals and other habilities - 28,176 - - 28,176
Total - 243,629 - - 243,629
Lessthan 61012
2011 Ondemand 6 months months 1to5 years Total
Bank debt - - - - -
Trade payables - 76,341 - - 76,341
Accruals and other habilities - 89,377 - - 89,377
Total - 165,718 - - 165,718

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management I1s to ensure that it maintains a strong internal calculation credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its operations and maximize shareholder value The Group’s policy s to
maintain leverage targets in line with an investment grade profile The Group monitors capital using Net Debt to EBITDA
ratio and establishes the desirable ranges based on the facts and circumstances at each time The Group includes within net
debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents

EBITDA 15 defined by adding back to {or subtracting form) profit after tax, income tax, finance costs and finance income and

depreciation and amortization expenses

Group
2012 2011
Long-term borrowings (note 22) 841,900 985,368
Short-term borrowings (note 22) 1,380,509 1,381,231
Total Debt 2,222,409 2,366,599
Less cash and cash eguivalents (note) -8,697,402 -9,657,296
Net (funds)/debt {6,474,993) (7,290,697}
EBITDA 10,576,979 6,458,113
Net debt to EBITDA {0 61} (113)
The table below presents a reconciliation from Profit/ {loss) after income tax to EBITDA
Group
2012 2011
Profit /{loss) after income tax 6,001,700 2,420,719
Income tax 899,587 840,099
Finance costs 586,818 1,042,659
Finance Income (361,065) (288,023)
Depreciation and amortization 3,449,939 2,442,659
EBITDA 10,576,979 6,458,113
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30. Events after the reporting period

The Cypriot crisis entails unique features and the impact of them should be highlighted

The Company’s subsidiary located tn Cyprus, mainly handles the Group’s operations in Afnica and in the Middle East as well
as the management of the marketing expenses related to the Akazoo business The company does not actually have any
operations 1n Cyprus or any transactions other than the ones related with its employees and local service providers

Moreover the announced haircut, for bank deposits above €100,000, will not significantly impact the financial pesition and
performance of the Group considering the fact that Group’s total cash deposits in Cyprus at that period amounted to
€264,343, (1% of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2012} and therefore, the total possible amount
converted to BOC shares is approx €69,518 while the amount of €41,710 will be turned into special BOC instrument which
may be used in its entirely or partially to capitalise at a later stage, and the amount of €74,152 will be locked at the
moment and will be released at a later date
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